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From: Jeremy Dickson

To: Kim Whitwell

Subject: FW: ALERT LEVELS 1 and 2: COVID-19 Guidance for Transport Operators - 18 February 2021
Date: Thursday, 8 April 2021 4:26:00 pm

Attachments: Final AL 1 and 2 Transport Operator Guidance 18 February 2021.pdf

From: COVID-19 Response Team <@x&

Sent: Thursday, 18 February 2021 10:29 AM

To: Brenda O'Donoghue <x@x%; Brent Johnston (Ministry of

Transport) <x@x&; COVID-19 Response Team

<@xx; Danielle Bachler <Danielle.Bachler@nzta.govt.nz>;

Deborah Hume <x@x; Delaney Myers <Delaney.Myers@nzta.govt.nz>;
Emma Barraclough <x@x&; Freya Proctor

<X@x¥%; Helen Presland <x@xnz>; Helen White

(Ministry of Transport) <x@x»&; lan Stuart <lan.S@xx;

Jacob McElwee <x@x%; Jacqui Sadler <Jacqui.Sadle@xx;

Lucy Nie <x@x%; Michelle McCormick <Michelle.McCormix;
National Emergency Response Team <@x%; Nick Hunter

<x@x¥%; Peter Cockrem <x@x»%; Rebekah Duffin

<X x%; Sarah Taylor <x@xx

Subject: ALERT LEVELS 1 and 2: COVID-19 Guidance for Transport Operators - 18 February 2021

Morena koutou,

Please find attached the FINAL guidance for Alert levels 2/1. There are no substantive changes.
From the draft sent last night.

Here is also the final
Order https://www.legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0007/1atest/TL.MS453805.html

Again, we also provide the following clarifications:

e Face coverings are mandatory on public transport across all of New Zealand for Alert level 2
(Auckland)/Alert Level 1 (rest of New Zealand). | have been advised by the Ministry of Health
that this will be reviewed on Monday.

¢ Some of you have asked about what the MoH advice is for the serving of food and drink on
services where face coverings are required, for AL2/1. We were advised the following this
evening for you to pass on to operators:

Whilst it is not a legal requirement, the Ministry of Health advises it is good practice to not
serve food or drink to passengers when face coverings are being worn, especially on short
journeys.

Noho ora mai

COVID Response Team
E @xxx / M +64 21716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz
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ALERT LEVELS 1 and 2: COVID-19 Guidance for
Transport Operators

Last updated: 0835hrs, 18 February 2021

1. This guidance is applicable to operators for the provision of all transport services, including public
transport, aviation, maritime and other land-based passenger services. To the extent that it is relevant, it
may also be used by organisations transporting passengers without hire or reward.

2. Itisintended to be read in conjunction with official information about COVID19 Alert Levels 1 and 2
contained on, or linked from, the covid19.govt.nz webpage and on the Ministry of Transport website.

3. Since this guidance was last published (at 0730 hrs on 17 November 2020) at 11.59pm on 17 February
2021, Auckland moved to Alert Level 2, and the rest of New Zealand moved to Alert Level 1.

Executive summary

1. At 11.59pm on 17 February 2021 Auckland will move to Alert Level 2, and the rest of New Zealand
moved to Alert Level 1.

2. The Alert Level 2 area is defined by Schedule 3 of the Order.

3. There are no restrictions on travel between the Alert Level 2 Area (Auckland) and the Alert Level 1
Area (rest of New Zealand).

4. In Auckland, individuals need to observe physical distancing at terminals, stations, and airports.
However, individuals do not need to maintain physical distancing on-board public transport services
at Alert Level 2; but passengers are still encouraged to keep their distance from others where
possible.

5. There are no physical distancing requirements at Alert Level 1.

6. Drivers, staff, and passengers are required to wear face coverings (with some exceptions), including
in the Alert Level 1 area. Passengers of small passenger vehicle services will not need to wear masks,
but drivers of these services will.

7. Operators are required to support contact tracing. Most transport operators are required to display
QR codes. Public transport services that require passengers to provide their name and a contact
phone number (in order to use the service) do not need to display QR codes.

8. Operators should continue to clean vehicles, vessels, aircraft and facilities (e.g terminals) in line with
Ministry of Health guidance.

9. With regards to workplace health and safety, operators should consider advice and guidance from
Worksafe and the Ministry of Health.

10. Transport operators are not expected, or required, to enforce passenger compliance with the Order
or Ministry of Health guidelines; but may provide advice to passengers for travelling safely for
example by displaying public information posters. Passengers and staff should not be encouraged to
call Police if someone is not complying with the requirements. As per normal procedures, if the
situation is dangerous or a passenger is displaying threatening behaviour, for example, Police should
be called.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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ALERT LEVELS 1 & 2

11. At 11.59pm on 17 February 2021 Auckland moved to Alert Level 2, and the rest of New Zealand moved
to Alert Level 1.

12. The Alert Level 2 area is defined by Schedule 3 of the Order.

13. There are no restrictions on travel between the Alert Level 2 Area (Auckland) and the Alert Level 1 Area
(rest of New Zealand).

Advice for traveling safely under Alert Level 2
4. We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. Travellers:

e Should be kind and patient with each other and transport staff, especially your driver or crew.

e Must observe physical distancing measures at terminals, stations, and airports. Where it is possible
to do so, keep your distance from other passengers on board public transport services.

e Must wear a face covering while on public transport (unless exempted).

e Should keep a record of where they go and their interactions on the NZ COVID Tracer App; including
scanning QR codes (where available), or manually recording travel information in the NZ COVID
Tracer App (where QR codes are not available); OR keep a manual record if you do not have a
smartphone.

e Should practice good hygiene and follow Ministry of Health advice. This includes washing and drying
their hands thoroughly with soap and water (or hand sanitiser if soap and water not available),
coughing and sneezing into their elbow, and not touching their face.

e Should plan ahead, and allow extra time to ensure their journey is as comfortable as possible.

e Should stay home if they’re unwell, or may have COVID-19. They should also not travel if they: have
been requested to self-isolate/quarantine, have symptoms of COVID-19, or are awaiting COVID-19
test results.

Advice for traveling safely under Alert Level 1
5. We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. Travellers:

e Should be kind and patient with each other and transport staff, especially your driver or crew.

e Should, where it is possible to do so, keep their distance from other passengers on board public
transport services.

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
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6. We recommend operators encourage their passengers and users to follow the safe travel tips (list above)
and by publically displaying COVID-19 educational posters on site, and through social media and public
announcements (e.g. in terminals and on-board).

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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About this guidance

7. This guidance outlines key information for transport service operators under Alert Level 1 and 2.
Specifically, the following matters are covered:

Section 1: Workplace health and safety
Section 2: Physical distancing

Section 3: Face coverings

Section 4: Supporting contact tracing efforts
Section 5: Cleaning practices

Section 6: Customer compliance

8. If you require further information or advice, please email the Ministry of Transport at:
essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz.

9. If you would like access to collateral, including posters for your transport assets (e.g. buses, trains) or
facility (e.g. terminals, platforms), please email the Ministry of Transport at:
essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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Section 1: Workplace health and safety

10. When considering workplace health and safety arrangements, transport operators should consider:

e any advice or guidance issued by Worksafe https://worksafe.govt.nz/managing-health-
and-safety/novel-coronavirus-covid/

e advice or guidance issue by the Ministry of Health https://www.health.govt.nz/our-
work/diseases-and-conditions/covid-19-novel-coronavirus (where this may be relevant
to their health and safety arrangements).

Section 2: Physical distancing

Public transport services — Alert Levels 1 & 2, all of New Zealand

11. Physical distancing does not need to be observed on board public transport services at Alert Levels 1 & 2;
however, passengers are still encouraged to physically distance where possible.

12. Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should issue public
messaging that discourages people who are unwell from using their services.

13. Additionally, it is recommended that some physical separation of the passengers from the driver
compartment is maintained.

Airports, bus stations, train stations, and ferry terminals - Alert Levels 2, Auckland

14. 1 metre distance between people and passengers at the airport, bus station, train station, or ferry
terminal is required (unless they are travelling together within their ‘bubble’ or ‘extended bubble’).

Airports, bus stations, train stations, and ferry terminals - Alert Levels 1, rest of New Zealand

15. Physical distancing does not need to be observed at the airport, bus station, train station, or ferry
terminal.

Section 3: Face coverings
Who needs to wear a face covering?

16. Drivers, staff, and passengers on public transport services are required to wear face coverings, including
in the Alert Level 1 Area. However, there are some exemptions, these include:

e persons on Cook Strait ferry services (see letter from the Director-General of Health (dated 16
September 2020)),

e passengers of small passenger services (but drivers of small passenger services are required to wear
face coverings),

e the following specific services:

o school buses (meaning dedicated school services contracted by: the Ministry of
Education, or Local Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport), or

o charter services and tours.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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What kind of face covering can be used?

17. Any face covering that adequately covers the mouth and nostrils can be used, these include: single use
disposable masks, washable reusable masks (whether purchased or homemade), or other types of face
coverings (e.g. a scarf wrapped around the face).

Is anybody exempt from wearing a mask?

18. Yes. Transport operators should be aware that the following persons are not required to wear face
coverings:

persons under the age of 12, and

persons who have a medical condition or disability that make it unsuitable to wear a face covering
(please note it might not always be clear why someone may need to be exempt from wearing a face
covering); and

drivers or staff, if:

o they are in a space separated from passengers (e.g. pilots in a cockpit, or train drivers in
a train cab), or

o wearing a face covering could make it unsafe to operate the vehicle (e.g. wearing a face
covering means drivers or staff are unable to properly communicate, or causes the
eyeglasses of the driver to fog).

19. In addition, transport operators should note that the use of face coverings is not required in the
following situations:

if it is unsafe to wear a face covering (e.g. if the person’s only face covering is wet, or wearing a face
covering means a driver cannot safely operate the vehicle),

if there is an emergency that requires the face covering to be removed (e.g. to perform CPR),
if removal of the face covering is required to prove identity,

if visibility of the mouth is required for communication (e.g. when communicating with someone
who is deaf),

if there is a legal requirement to remove, or not to wear, the face covering,
if there is a need to remove the face covering to take medicine,

if there is a need to remove the face covering to eat or drink (if eating or drinking is permitted by the
conditions of carriage),

if there is a reasonable excuse not to wear a face covering.

20. Information from the Ministry of Health, regarding the use of face coverings in the community, is
available here.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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What about enforcement?
21. The obligation to wear a face covering on public transport is the responsibility of the individual.
22. Operators, drivers and staff are not expected to assume the role of enforcement officer; but they still
have their usual customer relations role to remind people about face coverings. The role is to educate

and encourage passengers to do the right thing, but not be the enforcer.

23. Staff are not expected to refuse boarding to people who do not have a face covering. This kind of issue
should be dealt with as you would normally manage a difficult passenger situation.

24. Passengers and staff should not be encouraged to call Police if someone is not wearing a face covering.
As per normal procedures, if the situation is dangerous or a passenger is displaying threatening
behaviour, for example, Police should be called.

Should operators be encouraging and educating passengers about wearing face coverings?

25. Yes, the support of operators and staff in encouraging and educating passengers about the wearing of
face coverings is appreciated. A range of collateral is provided with this guidance including posters which
operators are asked to display across their fleets, terminals, stations and other facilities. A script to

support social media messaging and PA announcements is attached at Appendix 1 to this guidance.

26. The government will continue to remind people to follow the instructions of the public transport
workforce regarding face coverings.

27. These messages will be reinforced through a major All of Government public communications campaign,
including COVID-19 TV advertising.

Section 4: Supporting contact tracing
What is contact tracing and why is it important?

28. The purpose of contact tracing is to prevent potential onward transmission, raise awareness about the
disease and its symptoms and support early detection of suspected cases.

29. It is important that everyone undertakes practicable actions to support a quick and robust contact
tracing process. Contact tracing (coupled with testing and quarantine/isolation measures) is a critical
pillar in supporting New Zealand’s goal to eliminate COVID-19.

Who undertakes contact tracing?

30. Contact tracing is undertaken by Public Health Units (in the DHB where the confirmed or probable case
was diagnosed), or by the Ministry of Health’s National Close Contact Service.

31. When there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19, a contact tracing process will occur to:

o identify all ‘close contacts’ of the confirmed or probable case — so that these people can be
quarantined/isolated (and tested if required); and

o identify ‘casual contacts’, of the confirmed or probable case, and ask them to get tested if
they have (or develop) symptoms of COVID-19.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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What'’s the difference between a close contact and a casual contact?

32. Generally, a ‘close contact’ is someone who has been within 2 metres for more than 15 minutes of a
confirmed or probable case of COVID-19. The full definition of ‘close contact’ is available on page 13
of this factsheet: https://www.health.govt.nz/system/files/documents/pages/advice-for-health-
professionals-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-27aug2020.pdf

33. A ‘casual contact’ is someone who may have been in contact with a confirmed or probable case of
COVID-19, but more than 2m apart or for less 15 minutes.

What should regional authorities and transport operators do to support contact tracing?

34. At all Alert Levels, transport operators are required to support contact tracing.

35. Regional authorities, and transport operators, are required to display QR codes that are compatible with
the NZ COVID Tracer App for their transport assets. Those QR codes need to be displayed in an easily
accessible prominent place.

36. Public transport services are not required to obtain and display QR codes if they require all passengers to
provide their name and a contact telephone number (in order to use the service); these may include
services, such as:
® air passenger services,

e interregional bus services,
e interregional passenger train services.

37. In addition the following services do not need to obtain and display QR codes:

e school buses (meaning dedicated school services contracted by: the Ministry of Education, or Local
Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport), or

e car sharing services and carpooling services.

38. Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should also take steps to
promote and enable users and passengers to keep records for contact tracing purposes. We recommend
transport operators issue public messaging (e.g. through posters, announcements, social media) to
encourage users and passengers to:

e use the NZ COVID Tracer App by scanning the QR code (where display of the QR code is
available), or recording the trip manually in the NZ COVID Tracer App (if the QR code is not
available); OR keep a manual record if you do not have a smartphone.

e use public electronic ticketing cards where these are available (e.g. AT HOP, Snapper,

Metrocard or Bee Card) and make sure those cards are registered with the passenger’s contact
information.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs



https://www.health.govt.nz/system/files/documents/pages/advice-for-health-professionals-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-27aug2020.pdf

https://www.health.govt.nz/system/files/documents/pages/advice-for-health-professionals-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-27aug2020.pdf



=)= iri
S Ministry of Transport

: TE MANATL WAKA

Enabilirg Mew Zealanders to flourlizh

What can regional authorities and operators expect if there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19 on
their transport service?

39. If there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19 on a transport service, a health official will
notify the regional authority (in the case of public transport) and/or operator and request your
support with identifying the contacts of that person. The health official will be particularly
interested in details you might have of any people who were in ‘close contact’ with the COVID-19
case on the bus/train/ferry they are investigating.

40. For example, you may be asked to review CCTV footage, or online passenger registers (e.g. public
transport electronic ticketing card registration details).

41. The health official may also ask you to provide any contact information you might have for people
who were in ‘casual contact’ with the COVID-19 case on the bus/train/ferry/aircraft they are
investigating. This is so they can ask these ‘casual contacts’ to get tested if they have (or develop)
symptoms of COVID-19.

42. If you do not have this information (but are not certain that that there were no ‘close contacts’) the
health official will discuss with you what action should be taken. For example, they may request
that you undertake public messaging asking people that travelled on the service to contact the
COVID-19 Healthline.

43. If you are certain that there were no ‘close contacts’ (e.g. CCTV footage shows no ‘close contacts’
were established), then you should advise the health official of this and ask if there is anything
more that you should do.

Section 5: Cleaning

44. Transport operators should apply cleaning practices consistent with Ministry of Health guidance.
e Ministry of Health general guidance on cleaning can be found here
e  Ministry of Health cleaning FAQs can be found here

45. Cleaning regimes should include:

e cleaning the vehicle/vessel/aircraft regularly with particular attention to high-touch surfaces (where
possible, at the end of each shift/sailing/flight, but at least at the end of each day).

e asfar as practicable, frequent cleaning of high-touch surfaces throughout the day.
Section 6: Customer compliance
46. Transport operators are not expected, or required, to enforce passenger compliance with:
e the Order, or
e  Ministry of Health guidelines.
47. Transport operators, however, may choose to stop passengers boarding, where it is lawful to do so

on health and safety grounds as per their standard operating procedures.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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48. Transport operators may also provide advice to passengers for travelling safely for example by
displaying public information posters.

Last updated: 18 February 2021, 0835hrs
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Appendix 1: Public Announcement Scripts

Public Transport Operators — Bus / Train
Face coverings help us protect ourselves and others from the spread of COVID-19.

You are required to wear a face covering on public transport during alert levels 1 and
2.

Everyone should wear a face covering while on the bus / train, unless you are under
12 years old, or have a health reason for not wearing one.

Your driver may not be wearing a face covering because of safety/medical reasons.
Please be respectful.

We also encourage you to track your journey using the QR codes provided, or record
it manually.

Please keep your face covering on until you exit the bus / train, and if you need to
dispose of it, please do so safely.

If you are sick, please don’t use public transport.

Thanks for your cooperation.

Ferry Operators (excluding the Cook Strait ferries)
Face coverings help us protect ourselves and others from the spread of COVID-19.

You are required to wear a face covering on public transport during alert levels 1 and
2.

Everyone should wear a face covering while on the ferry, unless you are under 12
years old, or have a health reason for not wearing one.

Your captain or crew may not be wearing a face covering because of safety/medical
reasons. Please be respectful.

We also encourage you to track your journey using the QR codes provided, or record
it manually.

Please keep your face covering on until you exit the ferry, and if you need to dispose
of it, please do so safely.

If you are sick, please don’t use public transport.

Thanks for your cooperation.
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Airlines / Airports
Face coverings help us protect ourselves and others from the spread of COVID-19.

You are required to wear a face covering while on board the aircraft and until you
enter the terminal during alert levels 1 and 2.

Everyone should wear a face covering while on the aircraft, unless you are under 12
years old, or have a health reason for not wearing one.

Your pilot or members of the cabin crew may not be wearing a face covering for
safety reasons. Please be respectful.

Please keep your face covering on until you enter the terminal, and if you need to
dispose of it, please do so safely.

If you are sick, please don't fly.

Thanks for your cooperation.

12
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Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand
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AGENCY against
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This message, together with any attachments, may contain information that is classified and/or
subject to legal privilege. Any classification markings must be adhered to. If you are not the
intended recipient, you must not peruse, disclose, disseminate, copy or use the message in any
way. If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately by return email and
then destroy the original message. This communication may be accessed or retained by Waka
Kotahi NZ Transport Agency for information assurance purposes.
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From: Jeremy Dickson

To: Kim Whitwell

Subject: FW: Final Alert Level 2 and 3 Transport Operator Guidance - 15 Feb 2021
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Attachments: AL 2 and 3 Transport Operator Guidance 15 February 2021.pdf

From: COVID-19 Response Team <@x&

Sent: Monday, 15 February 2021 8:36 AM

To: Brenda O'Donoghue <x@x%; Brent Johnston (Ministry of

Transport) <x@x&; COVID-19 Response Team

<@x%; Danielle Bachler <Danielle.Bachler@nzta.govt.nz>;

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
National Emergency Response Team <@x; Nick Hunter

<x@x%; Peter Cockrem <x@x®: Rebekah Duffin

<X x%; Sarah Taylor <x@xx

Subject: Final Alert Level 2 and 3 Transport Operator Guidance - 15 Feb 2021

Hi everyone,
Please find attached:

e the Order which has now been promulgated -
https://www.legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0006/latest/[.MS451670.html.
Please note permitted travel across the boundary, to provide a business or service, is listed in
Schedule 3. Note this allows for the movement of public transport, freight, the transport
agencies and SOEs for a specified reason, and the construction of road and rail infrastructure.
Schedule 4 and 5 have the boundary definition.

e the final guidance.

Noho ora mai

COVID Response Team
E @xxx / M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand
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ACENay rORT again st
COVID-19


mailto:xxxxxx.xxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxx.xxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.legislation.govt.nz%2Fregulation%2Fpublic%2F2021%2F0006%2Flatest%2FLMS451670.html%3Fsrc%3Dqshttps%3A%2F%2Fwww.legislation.govt.nz%2Fregulation%2Fpublic%2F2021%2F0006%2Flatest%2FLMS451670.html%3Fsrc%3Dqs&data=04%7C01%7Cjeremy.dickson%40ecan.govt.nz%7C5b85e51338eb45b64a7008d8d11fc8e9%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637489282414899917%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Q%2FCSzTbpfMRfX2fWtRMPxzOik8dEQ7X%2FVEQJixOhQZc%3D&reserved=0
mailto:xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcovid19.govt.nz%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cjeremy.dickson%40ecan.govt.nz%7C5b85e51338eb45b64a7008d8d11fc8e9%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637489282414909909%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=96W6KVsaWcqbymiLQNMBqvnqFSZg1l0gjvAfczPXoGU%3D&reserved=0

=)= iri
S Ministry of Transport

: TE MANATL WAKA

Enabilirg Mew Zealanders to flourlizh

ALERT LEVELS 2 and 3: COVID-19 Guidance for
Transport Operators

Last updated: 0730hrs, 15 February 2021

This guidance is applicable to operators for the provision of all transport services, including public
transport, aviation, maritime and other land-based passenger services. To the extent that it is relevant, it
may also be used by organisations transporting passengers without hire or reward.

It is intended to be read in conjunction with official information about COVID19 Alert Levels 2 and 3
contained on, or linked from, the covid19.govt.nz webpage and on the Ministry of Transport website.

Since this guidance was last published (at 0920 hrs on 20 November 2020) possible community
transmission is under investigation in Auckland. At 11.59pm on 14 February 2021 Auckland will move to
Alert Level 3, and the rest of New Zealand will move to Alert Level 2, for a period of 72 hours.

Executive summary

Possible community transmission is under investigation in Auckland. At 11.59pm on 14 February
2021 Auckland will move to Alert Level 3, and the rest of New Zealand will move to Alert Level 2 for a
period of 72 hours.

The Alert Level 3 area is defined by Schedule 4 and Schedule 5 of the Order.

Interregional travel between the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) and the Alert Level 2 Area (rest of
New Zealand) will be restricted. Travel within the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) will also be
restricted.

In Auckland physical distancing needs to be observed on public transport services, and at terminals,
stations, and airports.

In the rest of New Zealand, individuals will need to observe physical distancing at terminals, stations,
and airports. However, individuals do not need to maintain physical distancing on-board public
transport services at Alert Level 2; but passengers are still encouraged to keep their distance from
others where possible.

With respect to public transport services travelling between the Auckland, and the rest of New
Zealand, physical distancing needs to be observed.

Drivers, staff, and passengers are required to wear face coverings at Alert Levels 2 and 3 (with some
exceptions). Passengers of small passenger vehicle services will not need to wear masks, but drivers
of these services will.

Operators are required to support contact tracing. Most transport operators are required to display
QR codes. Public transport services that require passengers to provide their name and a contact
phone number (in order to use the service) do not need to display QR codes.

Operators should continue to clean vehicles, vessels, aircraft and facilities (e.g terminals) in line with
Ministry of Health guidance.

With regards to workplace health and safety, operators should consider advice and guidance from
Worksafe and the Ministry of Health.

Transport operators are not expected, or required, to enforce passenger compliance with the Order
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

Last updated: 15 February 2021, 0730 hrs
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ALERT LEVELS2 & 3

e Possible community transmission is under investigation in Auckland. At 11.59pm on 14 February 2021
Auckland will move to Alert Level 3, and the rest of New Zealand will move to Alert Level 2, for a period
of 72 hours.

e The Alert Level 3 area is defined by Schedule 4 and Schedule 5 of the Order.

e Interregional travel between the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) and the Alert Level 2 Area (rest of New
Zealand) will be restricted. Travel within the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) will also be restricted.

Advice for traveling safely under Alert Level 3

o We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. We recommend travellers:

Note that travel restrictions are in place, please check https://covid19.govt.nz/ before
travelling.

Be kind and patient with each other and transport staff, especially your driver or crew.
Observe physical distancing measures on board public transport services, at terminals, at
stations, and at airports.

Wear a face covering while on public transport.

Keep a record of where they go and their interactions on the NZ COVID Tracer App; including
scanning QR codes (where available), or manually recording travel information in the NZ
COVID Tracer App (where QR codes are not available); OR keep a manual record if you do not
have a smartphone.

Practice good hygiene and follow Ministry of Health advice. This includes washing and drying
their hands thoroughly with soap and water (or hand sanitiser if soap and water not
available), coughing and sneezing into their elbow, and not touching their face.

Plan ahead, and allow extra time to ensure their journey is as comfortable as possible.

Stay home if they’re unwell, or may have COVID-19. They should also not travel if they: have
been requested to self-isolate/quarantine, have symptoms of COVID-19, or are awaiting
COVID-19 test results.

Advice for traveling safely under Alert Level 2

e We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. We recommend travellers:

O
O

Be kind and patient with each other and transport staff, especially your driver or crew.
Observe physical distancing measures at terminals, stations, and airports. Where it is possible
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
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o Stay home if they’re unwell, or may have COVID-19. They should also not travel if they: have
been requested to self-isolate/quarantine, have symptoms of COVID-19, or are awaiting
COVID-19 test results.

e We recommend operators encourage their passengers and users to follow the safe travel tips (list above)

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

e This guidance outlines key information for transport service operators under Alert Level 2 and 3.
Specifically, the following matters are covered:

Section 1: Workplace health and safety
Section 2: Travel restrictions

Section 3: Physical distancing

Section 4: Face coverings

Section 5: Supporting contact tracing efforts
Section 6: Cleaning practices

Section 7: Customer compliance

e [f you require further information or advice, please email the Ministry of Transport at:
essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz.

e If you would like access to collateral, including posters for your transport assets (e.g. buses, trains) or
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

e When considering workplace health and safety arrangements, transport operators should consider:

o any advice or guidance issued by Worksafe https://worksafe.govt.nz/managing-
health-and-safety/novel-coronavirus-covid/

o advice or guidance issue by the Ministry of Health
https://www.health.govt.nz/our-work/diseases-and-conditions/covid-19-novel-
coronavirus (where this may be relevant to their health and safety
arrangements).

Section 2: Travel restrictions
Interregional travel between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand
e Effective 11.59pm on 14 February 2021, interregional travel between the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland)
and the Alert Level 2 Area (the rest of New Zealand) will be restricted. Travel is only permitted for the
following reasons:
o travelling:

=  to provide an service or business listed in Schedule 3 of Order; or

= to provide an service or business listed in an exemption gazetted by the Director-
General of Health; or

= asa person who is exempted from the Order, pursuant to clause 45; or as an
enforcement officer

o maintaining a shared childcare arrangement; or

o providing urgent care for a child, if there is no other person available to provide that care in
the Alert Level Area that it is needed; or

o providing urgent care for a person in a critical or terminally ill condition, if there is no other
person available to provide that care in the Alert Level Area that it is needed; or

o attending an appointment with a health service; or

o attending Court, tribunal, New Zealand Parole Board hearing or another judicial institution; or
o leaving or relocating a home, or place of residence, on court order; or

o travelling to a home, or place of residence, after detention or determination; or

o leaving New Zealand (including travelling to a managed isolation or quarantine facility
immediately before leaving New Zealand); or

o travelling to preserve life or safety; or

Last updated: 15 February 2021, 0730 hrs
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o returning home (e.g. a person ordinarily lives in Auckland and need to get back from another
region of New Zealand, or needs to leave Auckland to get to their home in another region); or

o relocating home or business on a permanent or long-term basis; or

o returning home after arriving in New Zealand (and after completion of isolation/quarantine
where applicable)

o collecting a person who has returned to New Zealand as is returning home (and after
completion of isolation/quarantine where applicable); or

o collecting or accompanying a tipapaku or deceased person, but only if the total number of
people collecting or accompanying the tlpapaku or deceased person (including the person
operating the vehicle) is no more than 10; or

o providing care, or enable care to be provided, for pets or other animals, but only if—

= 3 breach of the Animal Welfare Act 1999 could result if the care were not provided;
and

= the travel between alert level areas is necessary to provide the care or enable it to be
provided; or

o travelling to Auckland Airport and are leaving by air (with a transit period of 24 hours or less if
transiting by air) to undertake travel described in the list above; or

o accompanying a person, where necessary, for the travel listed above; or

o travelling directly through Auckland (or via permitted airport transfer) between home and
work, if both the home and place of work are in Alert Level 2 areas; or

o travelling under an exemption granted by the Director General of Health; or

e Transport operators should not carry passengers, between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand, which
are not travelling for a permitted reason. In some cases passengers are required to provide documentary
evidence to support their reason for travel. Recommended documents, which the passenger
must/should provide to support their reason for travel, can be found at Appendix B. If you are uncertain
about the situation with respect to permitted movements, please email
essentiaItransport@transport.govt.nz

Travel within Auckland

e Travel within the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) will also be restricted. Travel is only permitted for the
following reasons:

o going to Auckland Airport to:

= take aflight to leave New Zealand, or

= take a flight to undertake permitted interregional travel (see above)

Last updated: 15 February 2021, 0730 hrs
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o returning home; or

o accessing local businesses or services; or

o going to work or education; or

o accessing low-risk recreation; or

o undertaking customary gathering, or

o attending permitted funeral, tangihana, wedding, or civil union, or

o facilitating permitted extended bubble arrangements or shared caregiving arrangements; or

o providing urgent care for a child, or a person in a terminally ill condition, if there is no other
person available to provide that care; or

o visiting a person in residential disability care (if permitted by the care provider); or
o attending an appointment with a health service; or

o attending a Court, tribunal, New Zealand Parole Board hearing or another judicial institution;
or

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
where applicable); or

o collecting a person who has returned to New Zealand and is returning home (and after
completion of isolation/quarantine where applicable); or

o collecting or accompany a tlpapaku or deceased person, but only if the total number of
people collecting or accompanying the tlipapaku or deceased person (including the person
operating the vehicle) is no more than 10; or

o providing care, or enabling care to be provided, for pets or other animals; or

o travelling under an exemption granted by the Director General of Health; or

o accompanying a fellow resident undertaking the above travel.

Last updated: 15 February 2021, 0730 hrs
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e Transport operators should not carry passengers within Auckland, which are not travelling for a
permitted reason. However it is understood that it may not be practicable to check that passengers are
travelling for a permitted reason. If you are uncertain about the situation with respect to permitted
movements, please email essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz

Section 3: Physical distancing

Public transport services — Alert Level 3, Auckland

e Air passenger services and small passenger vehicle services travelling within, to, from, or
through Auckland, are required to maintain physical distancing to the extent practicable:

o with respect to air passenger services, please note the Ministry of Health has
agreed that for a 72 hour order physical distancing on an aircraft is not likely to be
reasonably practicable, given it will require numbers of people to be disembarked
from the aircraft with little time to manage passengers.

o small passengers services in accordance with previous guidance the passenger(s)
should be seated as far from the driver as practicable, and the front passenger seat
should be unoccupied; passengers can travel together in the back seats if they are
part of the same bubble.

e On board other public transport services travelling within, to, from, or through Auckland,
physical distancing is generally required at a distance of 1 metre to the extent practical
(taking into account the nature of the service).

e Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should also issue public
messaging that discourages people who are unwell from using their services.

Public transport services — Alert Level 2, rest of New Zealand

e Physical distancing does not need to be observed on board public transport services at Alert Level 2 (and
which are not travelling to, from, or through Auckland); however, passengers are still encouraged to
physically distance where possible.

e Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should issue public
messaging that discourages people who are unwell from using their services.

e Additionally, it is recommended that some physical separation of the passengers from the driver
compartment is maintained.

Airports, bus stations, train stations, and ferry terminals - Alert Levels 2 & 3, all of New Zealand

e 1 metre distance between people and passengers at the airport or terminal is required (unless they are
travelling together within their ‘bubble’ or ‘extended bubble’).

Section 3: Face coverings
Who needs to wear a face covering?

e Drivers, staff, and passengers on public transport services are required to wear face coverings. However,
there are some exemptions, these include:

8
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o persons on Cook Strait ferry services (see letter from the Director-General of Health (dated 16
September 2020)),

o passengers of small passenger services (but drivers of small passenger services are required to
wear face coverings),

o the following specific services:

= school buses (meaning dedicated school services contracted by: the Ministry of
Education, or Local Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport), or

= charter services and tours.
What kind of face covering can be used?
e Any face covering that adequately covers the mouth and nostrils can be used, these include: single use
disposable masks, washable reusable masks (whether purchased or homemade), or other types of face
coverings (e.g. a scarf wrapped around the face).

Is anybody exempt from wearing a mask?

e Yes. Transport operators should be aware that the following persons are not required to wear face
coverings:

o persons under the age of 12, and

o persons who have a medical condition or disability that make it unsuitable to wear a face
covering (please note it might not always be clear why someone may need to be exempt from
wearing a face covering); and

o drivers or staff, if:

= they are in a space separated from passengers (e.g. pilots in a cockpit, or train drivers
in a train cab), or

= wearing a face covering could make it unsafe to operate the vehicle (e.g. wearing a
face covering means drivers or staff are unable to properly communicate, or causes

the eyeglasses of the driver to fog).

e In addition, transport operators should note that the use of face coverings is not required in the
following situations:

o ifitis unsafe to wear a face covering (e.g. if the person’s only face covering is wet, or wearing
a face covering means a driver cannot safely operate the vehicle),

o if there is an emergency that requires the face covering to be removed (e.g. to perform CPR),
o if removal of the face covering is required to prove identity,

o if visibility of the mouth is required for communication (e.g. when communicating with
someone who is deaf),
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o ifthereis a legal requirement to remove, or not to wear, the face covering,
o ifthereis a need to remove the face covering to take medicine,

o ifthereis a need to remove the face covering to eat or drink (if eating or drinking is permitted
by the conditions of carriage),

o if there is a reasonable excuse not to wear a face covering.

e Information from the Ministry of Health, regarding the use of face coverings in the community, is
available here.

What about enforcement?

e The obligation to wear a face covering on public transport is the responsibility of the individual.

e Operators, drivers and staff are not expected to assume the role of enforcement officer; but they still
have their usual customer relations role to remind people about face coverings. The role is to educate

and encourage passengers to do the right thing, but not be the enforcer.

e Staff are not expected to refuse boarding to people who do not have a face covering. This kind of issue
should be dealt with as you would normally manage a difficult passenger situation.

e Passengers and staff should not be encouraged to call Police if someone is not wearing a face covering.
As per normal procedures, if the situation is dangerous or a passenger is displaying threatening
behaviour, for example, Police should be called.

Should operators be encouraging and educating passengers about wearing face coverings?

e Yes, the support of operators and staff in encouraging and educating passengers about the wearing of
face coverings is appreciated. A range of collateral is provided with this guidance including posters which
operators are asked to display across their fleets, terminals, stations and other facilities. A script to

support social media messaging and PA announcements is attached at Appendix 1 to this guidance.

e The government will continue to remind people to follow the instructions of the public transport
workforce regarding face coverings.

e These messages will be reinforced through a major All of Government public communications campaign,
including COVID-19 TV advertising.

Section 4: Supporting contact tracing
What is contact tracing and why is it important?

e The purpose of contact tracing is to prevent potential onward transmission, raise awareness about the
disease and its symptoms and support early detection of suspected cases.

e |tis important that everyone undertakes practicable actions to support a quick and robust contact
tracing process. Contact tracing (coupled with testing and quarantine/isolation measures) is a critical
pillar in supporting New Zealand’s goal to eliminate COVID-19.

10
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Who undertakes contact tracing?

e Contact tracing is undertaken by Public Health Units (in the DHB where the confirmed or probable case
was diagnosed), or by the Ministry of Health’s National Close Contact Service.

e When there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19, a contact tracing process will occur to:

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

What’s the difference between a close contact and a casual contact?

e Generally, a ‘close contact’ is someone who has been within 2 metres for more than 15 minutes of a
confirmed or probable case of COVID-19. The full definition of ‘close contact’ is available on page 13
of this factsheet: https://www.health.govt.nz/system/files/documents/pages/advice-for-health-
professionals-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-27aug2020.pdf

e A ‘casual contact’ is someone who may have been in contact with a confirmed or probable case of
COVID-19, but more than 2m apart or for less 15 minutes.

What should regional authorities and transport operators do to support contact tracing?

Under Alert Levels 2 and 3, transport operators are required to support contact tracing.

e Regional authorities, and transport operators, are required to display QR codes that are compatible with
the NZ COVID Tracer App for their transport assets. Those QR codes need to be displayed in an easily
accessible prominent place.

e Public transport services are not required to obtain and display QR codes if they require all passengers to
provide their name and a contact telephone number (in order to use the service); these may include
services, such as:

O air passenger services,
o interregional bus services,
o interregional passenger train services.

e In addition the following services do not need to obtain and display QR codes:

o school buses (meaning dedicated school services contracted by: the Ministry of Education, or
Local Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport), or

o car sharing services and carpooling services.

e Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should also take steps to
promote and enable users and passengers to keep records for contact tracing purposes. We recommend
transport operators issue public messaging (e.g. through posters, announcements, social media) to
encourage users and passengers to:

11
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o use the NZ COVID Tracer App by scanning the QR code (where display of the QR code is
available), or recording the trip manually in the NZ COVID Tracer App (if the QR code is
not available); OR keep a manual record if you do not have a smartphone.

o use public electronic ticketing cards where these are available (e.g. AT HOP, Snapper,
Metrocard or Bee Card) and make sure those cards are registered with the passenger’s
contact information.

What can regional authorities and operators expect if there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19 on
their transport service?

e If there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19 on a transport service, a health official will
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

e For example, you may be asked to review CCTV footage, or online passenger registers (e.g. public
transport electronic ticketing card registration details).

e The health official may also ask you to provide any contact information you might have for people
who were in ‘casual contact’ with the COVID-19 case on the bus/train/ferry/aircraft they are
investigating. This is so they can ask these ‘casual contacts’ to get tested if they have (or develop)
symptoms of COVID-19.

e If you do not have this information (but are not certain that that there were no ‘close contacts’) the
health official will discuss with you what action should be taken. For example, they may request
that you undertake public messaging asking people that travelled on the service to contact the
COVID-19 Healthline.

e If you are certain that there were no ‘close contacts’ (e.g. CCTV footage shows no ‘close contacts’
were established), then you should advise the health official of this and ask if there is anything
more that you should do.

Section 5: Cleaning

e Transport operators should apply cleaning practices consistent with Ministry of Health guidance.

o Ministry of Health general guidance on cleaning can be found here
o Ministry of Health cleaning FAQs can be found here

e (Cleaning regimes should include:

o cleaning the vehicle/vessel/aircraft regularly with particular attention to high-touch surfaces
(where possible, at the end of each shift/sailing/flight, but at least at the end of each day).

o as far as practicable, frequent cleaning of high-touch surfaces throughout the day.
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Section 6: Customer compliance
Travel restrictions

e Transport operators are not required to enforce passenger compliance with travel restrictions, however
transport operators:

o should not carry passengers, between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand, which are not
travelling for a permitted reason,

o should not carry passengers, within Auckland, which are not travelling for a permitted reason.

However it is understood that it may not be practicable to check that passengers are travelling
for a permitted reason.

e Transport operators should encourage potential passengers to check what the current restrictions are
prior to making a booking or using their services.

e The New Zealand Police will enforce compliance with travel restrictions with respect to land transport
(particularly at the Alert Level 2/3 boundary), and the Aviation Security Service will check compliance
with travel restrictions with respect to air transport. Ferry operators can contact the New Zealand Police
if enforcement of travel restrictions is required with respect to their services.

Other public health measures

e With respect to the other public health measures, transport operators are not expected, or required, to
enforce passenger compliance with:

o the COVID-19 Public Health Response (Alert Levels 3 and 2) Order (No 3) 2020, or
o Ministry of Health guidelines.

e Transport operators, however, may choose to stop passengers boarding, where it is lawful to do so
on health and safety grounds as per their standard operating procedures.

e Transport operators may also provide advice to passengers for travelling safely for example by
displaying public information posters.
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Appendix 1. Public Announcement Scripts

Public Transport Operators — Bus / Train
Face coverings help us protect ourselves and others from the spread of COVID-19.
You are required to wear a face covering on public transport during alert levels 2 and 3.

Everyone should wear a face covering while on the bus / train, unless you are under 12
years old, or have a health reason for not wearing one.

Your driver may not be wearing a face covering because of safety/medical reasons. Please
be respectful.

We also encourage you to track your journey using the QR codes provided, or record it
manually.

Please keep your face covering on until you exit the bus / train, and if you need to dispose of
it, please do so safely.

If you are sick, please don'’t use public transport.

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

Everyone should wear a face covering while on the ferry, unless you are under 12 years old,
or have a health reason for not wearing one.

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

Please keep your face covering on until you exit the ferry, and if you need to dispose of it,
please do so safely.

If you are sick, please don’t use public transport.

Thanks for your cooperation.

Airlines / Airports

Face coverings help us protect ourselves and others from the spread of COVID-19.

14
Last updated: 15 February 2021, 0730 hrs





=)= iri
S Ministry of Transport

: TE MANATL WAKA

Enabilirg Mew Zealanders to flourlizh

You are required to wear a face covering while on board the aircraft and until you enter the
terminal during alert levels 2 and 3.

Everyone should wear a face covering while on the aircraft, unless you are under 12 years
old, or have a health reason for not wearing one.

Your pilot or members of the cabin crew may not be wearing a face covering for safety
reasons. Please be respectful.

Please keep your face covering on until you enter the terminal, and if you need to dispose of
it, please do so safely.

If you are sick, please don't fly.

Thanks for your cooperation.
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DRAFT IN CONFIDENCE

Appendix B: Required/recommended evidence for movement across an Alert

Level 2/3 boundary

Note if a person is travelling by air and transiting through the Alert Level 3 area, pursuant to clause 17(2) of the Order, they should have an onward ticket

(and their transit time cannot be more than 24 hours).

Business Travel

Reason for travel

Required/recommended evidence to carry

Travelling to provide a business or service, listed in
Schedule 3 of the Order.

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aBusiness Travel Document (issued via the business travel register (administered by
MBIE)) — preferred; or

e aletter (issued by the persons employer) stating that:
o the person named in the letter providing an business or service (listed in
Schedule 3 of the Order), and
o the destination the person is travelling to (note alternatively the letter, and a
document showing the persons destination, can be two separate documents).

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators
(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Travelling:

e to provide specified exempted business/service
under clause 45 of the Order

e as an enforcement officer

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aBusiness Travel Document (issued via the business travel register (administered by
MBIE)) — preferred; or

e aletter (issued by the relevant business or service) stating that the person named in

the letter is:
o providing a specified exempted business/service, or is an enforcement officer,
and

DRAFT IN CONFIDENCE

16



https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0006/latest/LMS451879.html

https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0006/latest/LMS451879.html

https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0006/latest/LMS451846.html



o the destination the person is travelling to (note alternatively the letter, and a
document showing the persons destination, can be two separate documents)..

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators
(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Travelling to relocate a Business

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aBusiness Travel Document (issued via the business travel register (administered by
MBIE)) — preferred; or

e proof of the new business address (e.g. a commercial tenancy agreement etc.)
A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators

(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Travelling to provide or enable care to be provided
for pets or other animals, but not a business listed
under Schedule 3 of the Order

Should carry evidence, where possible, showing the purpose of travel and the person’s
destination; this could be a Business Travel Document (issued via the business travel register
(administered by MBIE), following an assessment by the Ministry of Primary Industries)

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators
(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Travelling to provide a business or service, not listed
in Schedule 3 of the Order, but subject to a gazetted
class exemption.

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:
e aBusiness Travel Document (the business travel register will be updated with any class
exemptions as they are approved, businesses can then make a request under the new

category) — preferred; or

e aletter (issued by the persons employer) stating that:
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o the person named in the letter is providing a business or service that has been
exempted (with reference to the gazette number), and

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

Note while it is not a legal requirement for persons travelling to carry documentation (except a
person driving a road vehicle must carry a drivers license), persons travelling under an
exemption should expect that an enforcement officer will refuse them travel (or a transport
service will refuse them boarding) if they do not have proof of that exemption.

Travelling to provide a business or service, not listed
in Schedule 3 of the Order or a gazetted class
exemption, individual exemption required.

Must carry a Business Travel Document (issued via the business travel register (administered by
MBIE), pursuant to the issuing and gazetting of an exemption by the Director-General of
Health).

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

Personal Travel

Reason for travel

Required/recommended evidence to carry

Maintaining a shared childcare arrangement.

Should carry evidence, where possible, showing the purpose of travel and the person’s
destination; this could be:
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e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by
the MoH)); or

e acopy of the signed shared childcare agreement, or
e acopy of the Court Order directing the shared childcare arrangement.
A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators

(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Providing urgent care for a child, (if no other person
is able to provide the care or support in the Alert
Level area that it is needed).

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

e aletter from social worker or other professional (explaining that there is a child in need
of urgent care).

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators
(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Providing urgent care or support for a personina
critical or terminal condition (if no other person is
able to provide the care or support in the Alert Level
area that it is needed).

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

e aletter from a medical professional (explaining that there is a person in critical or
terminal condition that requires care or support).
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A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators

(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Attending an appointment with a health service

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e proof of an appointment with a health service (e.g. a letter (signed by a health
professional) detailing the time and location of the appointment).

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of
other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Attending court, tribunal, New Zealand Parole Board
hearing, or other judicial institution

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e proof of requirement/permission to attend a court, tribunal, New Zealand Parole Board

or other judicial institution (e.g. a jury summons, a witness summons, a summons to a
defendant etc)

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators
(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Leaving or relocating home, or place of residence, on
Court Order

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or
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e acopy of the Court Order

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Travelling to a home/residence after detention or
determination

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e documentary evidence of the detention/determination, and documentation showing the
home/residence that the person is travelling to.

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Leaving New Zealand (including travelling to a
managed isolation or quarantine facility immediately
before leaving New Zealand);

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e acopy of the airline booking (and if staying in a managed isolation or quarantine facility
before leaving New Zealand, evidence of a booking in a managed isolation or quarantine
facility).

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).
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Travelling to preserve life or safety

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

No other documentation is required; but if a person does have documentation that helps
explain their situation (e.g. a letter from a Police Officer or Social Worker), they should carry it.

Accompanying a person, where necessary, for the
travel listed above

Should carry evidence, where possible; this evidence could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e other documentation that helps explain the situation (e.g. proof of residence that shows
that both persons reside at the same residence).

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Returning home (e.g. a person ordinarily lives in
Auckland and need to get back from another region
of New Zealand, or needs to leave Auckland to get to
their home in another region);

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e proof of residential address, which has both the person’s name and address on the
document (e.g. utility bill, bank statement etc)

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Relocating a home/residence on a permanent or
long-term basis

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:
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e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e proof of the new residence (e.g. a sale and purchase agreement, a residential tenancy
agreement etc.)

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Returning home after arriving in New Zealand (and
after completion of isolation/quarantine where
applicable)

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
MoH)); or

e proof of residential address (e.g. utility bill, bank statement etc)
A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other

vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Collecting a person that has arrived in New Zealand
(and after completion of isolation/quarantine where
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
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Travelling to collect/accompany a tipapaku or
deceased person

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
explain their situation, they should carry it.

Travelling to provide or enable care to be provided
for pets or other animals

Should carry evidence, where possible, showing the purpose of travel and the person’s
destination; this could be this could be a Personal Travel Document (issued via the personal
travel register (administered by the MoH), following an assessment by the Ministry of Primary
Industries)

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators (of other
vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is not
reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Travelling for a personal reason, not permitted by
the Order, but subject to a gazetted class exemption.

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aPersonal Travel Document (via the personal travel register (administered by the MoH),
pursuant to the issuing and gazetting of a class exemption by the Director-General of
Health) — preferred; or

e aletter (from an appropriate authority) stating:
o that the person named in the letter is travelling for a an exempted purpose (with
reference to the gazette number), and
o the destination of the person.

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
person driving a road vehicle must carry a drivers license), persons travelling under an exemption
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should expect that an enforcement officer will refuse them travel (or a transport service will
refuse them boarding) if they do not have proof of that exemption.

Travelling for a personal reason, not permitted by
the Order, or a gazetted class exemption, individual
exemption required

Must carry a Personal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by

the MoH), pursuant to the issuing and gazetting of an exemption by the Director-General of
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

Personal/Business Travel, through the AL 3 area (without stopping)

Reason for travel

Required/recommended evidence to carry

Travelling directly through Auckland (or via
permitted airport transfer) between home and work,
if both the home and place of work are in Alert Level
2 areas;

Must carry evidence of the purpose of travel and the person’s destination; this could be:

e aBusiness Travel Document (issued via the business travel register (administered by
MBIE)), or a Personal Travel Document (issued via the business travel register
(administered by MoH)) — depending on the purpose of travel, or

e other document(s) that demonstrate the purpose of travel and the destination of the
person travelling (e.g. a letter issued by their employer with this information (if travelling
to work) and a proof of residential address (if travelling home).

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

Subject: FW: FINAL Transport operator guidance and collateral for alert level 1
Date: Thursday, 8 April 2021 4:26:00 pm

Attachments: FINAL Transport operator guidance and collateral for alert level 1.pdf

From: COVID-19 Response Team <@x&

Sent: Tuesday, 23 February 2021 2:08 PM

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

Subject: FINAL Transport operator guidance and collateral for alert level 1

Hi everyone,
Please find attached:

e Alink to the new Public Health Order - COVID-19 Public Health Response (Alert Level

Requirements) Order (No 3) 2021 (L1 2021/13) Contents — New Zealand Legislation

e The final version of the operator guidance for Alert level 1

e Alink to stakeholder collateral, including posters for face coverings -
https://drive.google.com/drive/u/1/folders/ImQ7QW933DR5K_7cqUyNc448BGBYrRjA7

Noho ora mai

Becks

COVID Response Team
E mxx / M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

NZ TRANSPORT

AGENCY against
COVID-19

'bWAKA KOTAHI /  Unite
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ALERT LEVEL 1: COVID-19 Guidance for Transport
Operators

Last updated: 0815hrs, 23 February 2021

1. This guidance is applicable to operators for the provision of all transport services, including public
transport, aviation, maritime and other land-based passenger services. To the extent that it is relevant, it
may also be used by organisations transporting passengers without hire or reward.

2. ltisintended to be read in conjunction with official information about COVID19 Alert Levels 1 contained
on, or linked from, the covid19.govt.nz webpage and on the Ministry of Transport website.

3. Since this guidance was last published (at 0835 hrs on 18 February 2021):

o at11.59pm on 22 February 2021, Auckland moved to Alert Level 1, and the rest of New Zealand
remained at Alert Level 1;
o the Director-General of Health has issued a gazette notice exempting certain services from the
face covering requirements;
o information has been added on how individuals exempt from the face covering requirements
(for medical or disability reasons) can apply for an exemption card.
Executive summary

1. At 11.59pm on 22 February 2021, Auckland moved to Alert Level 1, and the rest of New Zealand
remained at Alert Level 1.

2. There are no physical distancing requirements at Alert Level 1.

3. Drivers, staff, and passengers are required to wear face coverings (with some exceptions).
Passengers of small passenger vehicle services will not need to wear masks, but drivers of these
services will. Exemptions also apply to pre-booked bus and train services (that meet certain
conditions), and jet boat services.

4. Operators are required to support contact tracing. Most transport operators are required to display
QR codes. Public transport services that require passengers to provide their name and a contact
phone number (in order to use the service) do not need to display QR codes.

5. Operators should continue to clean vehicles, vessels, aircraft and facilities (e.g terminals) in line with
Ministry of Health guidance.

6. With regards to workplace health and safety, operators should consider advice and guidance from
Worksafe and the Ministry of Health.

7. Transport operators are not expected, or required, to enforce passenger compliance with the Order
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
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8. At 11.59pm on 22 February 2021, Auckland moved to Alert Level 1, and the rest of New Zealand
remained at Alert Level 1.

Advice for traveling safely under Alert Level 1
9. We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. Travellers:

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

10. We recommend operators encourage their passengers and users to follow the safe travel tips (list above)

and by publically displaying COVID-19 educational posters on site, and through social media and public
announcements (e.g. in terminals and on-board).

Last updated: 23 February 2021, 0815hrs
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About this guidance

11. This guidance outlines key information for transport service operators under Alert Level 1. Specifically,
the following matters are covered:

Section 1: Workplace health and safety
Section 2: Physical distancing

Section 3: Face coverings

Section 4: Supporting contact tracing efforts
Section 5: Cleaning practices

Section 6: Customer compliance

12. If you require further information or advice, please email the Ministry of Transport at:
essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz.

13. If you would like access to collateral, including posters for your transport assets (e.g. buses, trains) or
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

14. When considering workplace health and safety arrangements, transport operators should consider:

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

Public transport services

15. Physical distancing does not need to be observed on board public transport services at Alert Levels 1;
however, passengers are still encouraged to physically distance where possible.

16. Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should issue public
messaging that discourages people who are unwell from using their services.

17. Additionally, it is recommended that some physical separation of the passengers from the driver
compartment is maintained.

Airports, bus stations, train stations, and ferry terminals

18. Physical distancing does not need to be observed at the airport, bus station, train station, or ferry
terminal.

Section 3: Face coverings
Who needs to wear a face covering?

19. Drivers, staff, and passengers on public transport services are required to wear face coverings. However,
there are some exemptions, these include:

e passengers of small passenger services (but drivers of small passenger services are required to wear
face coverings);

e persons travelling on a pre-booked bus or train service, where:

o the service requires all passengers to provide their name and a contact
telephone number (in order to use the service); and

o there is a seat allocated to individual ticket holders of that service;
e persons travelling on a jet boat service;
e the following specific services:

o Cook Strait ferry services (see letter from the Director-General of Health (dated 16
September 2020));

Last updated: 23 February 2021, 0815hrs
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o school buses (meaning dedicated school services contracted by: the Ministry of
Education, or Local Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport), or

o charter services and charter tours.

What kind of face covering can be used?

20. Any face covering that adequately covers the mouth and nostrils can be used, these include: single use
disposable masks, washable reusable masks (whether purchased or homemade), or other types of face
coverings (e.g. a scarf wrapped around the face).

Is anybody exempt from wearing a mask?

21. Yes. Transport operators should be aware that the following persons are not required to wear face
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
covering - even though exemption cards are available, they are not mandatory); and

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

22. In addition, transport operators should note that the use of face coverings is not required in the
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





sf'= Ministry of Transport

TE MANATU WAKA

Enabling New Zealanders to flourish

23. Information from the Ministry of Health, regarding the use of face coverings in the community, is
available here.

How can people demonstrate they are exempt?

24. People that are exempt from the face covering requirements because they have a medical condition or
disability that makes it unsuitable to wear a face covering, can request an exemption card. Requests can
be made by contacting Healthline (0800 358 5453) or Disabled Persons Assembly NZ (04 801 9100 or
at info@dpa.org.nz).

25. Please note that people that are exempt from the face covering requirements, do not need to have an
exemption card.

What about enforcement?

26. The obligation to wear a face covering on public transport is the responsibility of the individual.

27. Operators, drivers and staff are not expected to assume the role of enforcement officer; but they still
have their usual customer relations role to remind people about face coverings. The role is to educate

and encourage passengers to do the right thing, but not be the enforcer.

28. Staff are not expected to refuse boarding to people who do not have a face covering. This kind of issue
should be dealt with as you would normally manage a difficult passenger situation.

29. Passengers and staff should not be encouraged to call Police if someone is not wearing a face covering.
As per normal procedures, if the situation is dangerous or a passenger is displaying threatening
behaviour, for example, Police should be called.

Should operators be encouraging and educating passengers about wearing face coverings?

30. Yes, the support of operators and staff in encouraging and educating passengers about the wearing of
face coverings is appreciated. A range of collateral is provided with this guidance including posters which
operators are asked to display across their fleets, terminals, stations and other facilities. A script to

support social media messaging and PA announcements is attached at Appendix 1 to this guidance.

31. The government will continue to remind people to follow the instructions of the public transport
workforce regarding face coverings.

32. These messages will be reinforced through a major All of Government public communications campaign,
including COVID-19 TV advertising.

Section 4: Supporting contact tracing
What is contact tracing and why is it important?

33. The purpose of contact tracing is to prevent potential onward transmission, raise awareness about the
disease and its symptoms and support early detection of suspected cases.

34. ltis important that everyone undertakes practicable actions to support a quick and robust contact

tracing process. Contact tracing (coupled with testing and quarantine/isolation measures) is a critical
pillar in supporting New Zealand’s goal to eliminate COVID-19.
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Who undertakes contact tracing?

35. Contact tracing is undertaken by Public Health Units (in the DHB where the confirmed or probable case
was diagnosed), or by the Ministry of Health’s National Close Contact Service.

36. When there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19, a contact tracing process will occur to:

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

37. Generally, a ‘close contact’ is someone who has been within 2 metres for more than 15 minutes of a
confirmed or probable case of COVID-19. The full definition of ‘close contact’ is available on page 13
of this factsheet: https://www.health.govt.nz/system/files/documents/pages/advice-for-health-
professionals-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-27aug2020.pdf

38. A ‘casual contact’ is someone who may have been in contact with a confirmed or probable case of
COVID-19, but more than 2m apart or for less 15 minutes.

What should regional authorities and transport operators do to support contact tracing?

39. At all Alert Levels, transport operators are required to support contact tracing.

40. Regional authorities, and transport operators, are required to display QR codes that are compatible with
the NZ COVID Tracer App for their transport assets. Those QR codes need to be displayed in an easily
accessible prominent place.

41. Public transport services are not required to obtain and display QR codes if they require all passengers to
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

42. In addition the following services do not need to obtain and display QR codes:

e school transport services (meaning dedicated school transport services contracted by: the Ministry
of Education, or Local Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport), or

e car sharing services and carpooling services.
43. Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should also take steps to
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

44. If there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19 on a transport service, a health official will
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

45. For example, you may be asked to review CCTV footage, or online passenger registers (e.g. public
transport electronic ticketing card registration details).

46. The health official may also ask you to provide any contact information you might have for people
who were in ‘casual contact’ with the COVID-19 case on the bus/train/ferry/aircraft they are
investigating. This is so they can ask these ‘casual contacts’ to get tested if they have (or develop)
symptoms of COVID-19.

47. If you do not have this information (but are not certain that that there were no ‘close contacts’) the
health official will discuss with you what action should be taken. For example, they may request
that you undertake public messaging asking people that travelled on the service to contact the
COVID-19 Healthline.

48. If you are certain that there were no ‘close contacts’ (e.g. CCTV footage shows no ‘close contacts’
were established), then you should advise the health official of this and ask if there is anything
more that you should do.

Section 5: Cleaning

49. Transport operators should apply cleaning practices consistent with Ministry of Health guidance.
e  Ministry of Health general guidance on cleaning can be found here
e Ministry of Health cleaning FAQs can be found here

50. Cleaning regimes should include:

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

51. Transport operators are not expected, or required, to enforce passenger compliance with:
e the Order, or
e  Ministry of Health guidelines.

52. Transport operators, however, may choose to stop passengers boarding, where it is lawful to do so
on health and safety grounds as per their standard operating procedures.

53. Transport operators may also provide advice to passengers for travelling safely for example by
displaying public information posters.
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Appendix 1: Public Announcement Scripts

Public Transport Operators — Bus / Train (excluding exempt pre-
booked services)

Face coverings help us protect ourselves and others from the spread of COVID-19.
You are required to wear a face covering on public transport during alert level 1.

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
reasons. Please be respecitful.

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
enter the terminal during alert level 1.

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
Subject: FW: Mask Uptake - Level 1
Date: Thursday, 8 April 2021 4:25:00 pm

From: Jeremy Dickson

Sent: Thursday, 18 February 2021 3:17 PM

To: Paul Milligan <xxxxx@xxxxxxxx.xx.xx>; Edward Wright <Edward.Wright@ecan.govt.nz>
Cc: Sam Wilkes <xxx.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Subject: RE: Mask Uptake - Level 1

Thanks for the heads up Paul.

The messaging went out late so many will just not be aware of the requirement to wear a mask but will most
likely have picked this up today and will when they see the posters.

The messaging from central government has been clear that we are not expected to police or enforce this
and you can point to the information on the COVID site which is as follows:

Public transport and domestic flights

You legally must wear a face covering on public transport and domestic flights at Alert Level 1.

This includes trains, buses and most ferries.

Drivers and transport operators will not stop people without face coverings from boarding public
transport. This is because some people will have legitimate reasons for not wearing a face covering.
However, where possible, drivers will be encouraging passengers to wear a face covering.

Happy to chat if required

Jeremy

From: Paul Milligan <xxxxX (@ XXXXXXXX.XX.XX >

Sent: Thursday, 18 February 2021 2:36 PM

To: Edward Wright <xXXXXX.XXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXXX >

Cc: Sam Wilkes <xxX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX__>; Jeremy Dickson <xXXXXX.XXXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX__>
Subject: Mask Uptake - Level 1

Hi Guys,

FYI —we have had a large increase of passengers not wearing a mask today and got a bit of stick from some
customers about us not enforcing it.

It seems lots have missed the memo about level 1 masks being required.

| have just met with the team and will be more actively encouraging it.

| have also just received the new posters from Covid-19 response that we will put up.

Thanks,

Paul Milligan
Chief Executive

T: +64 (0)3 964 2283 P: PO Box 80, Lyttelton 8841 - f - '
M: +64 (0)29 770 6484 A: Level 1, Harbourside House,
E: X000 @XHRXXXXXXXXXX 5 Norwich Quay, Lyttelton CRUISES
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Follow us @blackcatcruises Facebook . [nstagram . Twitter . Youtube Or Read our latest blog
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From: Jeremy Dickson

To: Kim Whitwell
Subject: FW: Offering of masks on Public Transport
Date: Thursday, 8 April 2021 4:21:00 pm

From: Jeremy Dickson

Sent: Monday, 8 March 2021 1:26 PM

To: Michelle Clemence <xXXXXXXX.XXXXXXXX @XXXXXX.XX.xx>; Dave Rutledge

XXX XXXXXXXX @ XXXXX.XX.XX>; Timaru Manager <xXXXXX.XXXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.xX.nz>; Paul
<UXXXX (@ XXXXXXXK . XX XX>

Cc: Isabelle Bromham <xxxxXxxX.XXXXXXX @ XXXX.XXxX.xx>; Lance E. Hammond
SXXXXKXXXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>; Sam Wilkes <xXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>; Anne Doidge
SXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>; Stewart Gibbon <xxxXXxX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.Xx>; Paritosh
Pancholy <xxXXXxXXXX.XXXXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Subject: Offering of masks on Public Transport

Hi Team

We have reviewed our policy regarding the offering of masks to passengers based on the
amount of time face coverings have been mandatory for passengers and reducing levels of

supply.

As of today we would like to apply a new policy across the network that we expect passengers to
provide their own face coverings and we therefore will no longer offer masks to passengers on
our public transport network.

In light of this can you please action the following:

e any supplies currently on vehicle to be used-up

¢ following that no masks to offered to passengers

e operators maintain their current supply in depot in the event that they are required in the
future

e operators continue to provide masks to drivers from their own stock —i.e. not the stock
provided by ECan.

We have provided no communications to members of the public regarding our offering of masks
to date and so will not be publishing this decision wider.

Finally could you please provide an update of current masks levels direct to Lance Hammond as
soon as practical

Thank you and happy to discuss

Jeremy
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From: Jeremy Dickson

To: Kim Whitwell
Subject: FW: COVID update
Date: Thursday, 8 April 2021 4:19:00 pm

From: Jeremy Dickson

Sent: Sunday, 14 February 2021 8:50 PM

To: Ben Barlow <xxx.XXXXXX@XXXXX.XX.XX>; Sam Wilkes <xxX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.NzZ>;
XXXXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX.XX; Timaru Manager <xXXXXX.XXXXXXX(@ XXXXXXXX.xx.xx>; Dave Rutledge
XXX XXXXXXXX @ XXXXX.XX.XX>; Richard O'Keefe <xXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX.NZ>;
XXXXXXXXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXK XX XX

Cc: Chelsea Halliwell <xxxxxxx. xxXxXXXXxX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>; Stewart Gibbon
LXXXXXXK . XXXXXX (@ XXXX . XXXX . XX>

Subject: COVID update

Hi All

As per my text message. We go into alert level 2 from midnight tonight for 3 days.

The following are key changes to our network practices at level 2 effective from midnight:

Masks are required to be used by passengers on Urban services. There are a few exceptions for
health or other reasons and drivers are not required to police this.

We would like drivers to have a box of masks from which they can offer one to boarding
passengers. You should all have enough stock for this.

Sam is delivering (hopefully) tonight some poster regarding masks to be put on buses as soon as
practicable and at the latest by COB tomorrow please.

A key point to make is that social distancing on buses is not required due to masks being
mandatory - this is a change from last times alert level 2.

We will be pushing these messages through all of our channels this evening.
Please be in touch with any questions and thank you once again

Jeremy

Sent from my Galaxy
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From: COVID-19 Response Team
To: Brenda O"Donoghue; Brent Johnston (Ministry of Transport); COVID-19 Response Team; Danielle Bachler;
Deborah Hume; DeIaney Myers; Emma Barraclough; Freya Proctor; Helen Presland; Helen White (Ministry

of Transport); Ian Stuart; Jacob McElwee; Jacqui Sadler; Lucy Nie; Michelle McCormick; National Emergency
Response Team; Nick Hunter; Peter Cockrem; Rebekah Duffin; Sarah Taylor

Subject: Guidance to support Alert level announcements today
Date: Friday, 12 March 2021 1:06:41 pm

Attachments: Final AL 1 Transport Operator Guidance 12 March 2021.pdf
Téna koe

As you will no doubt be aware, the Prime Minister earlier announced that Auckland will join the
rest of New Zealand at Alert Level 1 from midday today.
Here is the link to the Order

The updated Operator Gwdance for circulation is attached. Please note there are a few changes:

e The exemption from the requirement to wear face coverings for some pre-booked bus and
train services has now been included in the Order.

e The previous face covering exemption for ‘jet boats’ has been broadened to cover similar
services (an important caveat is that the vessel can’t have enclosed spaces), and it also now
covered in the Order;

e Further clarification has been provided around micro mobility services, and car sharing etc.

Noho ora mai

COVID Response Team
E 0xx / M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

'bWAKA KOTAHI /' Unite

NZ TRANSPORT

AGENCY agamst
COVID-19

This message, together with any attachments, may contain information that is classified
and/or subject to legal privilege. Any classification markings must be adhered to. If you
are not the intended recipient, you must not peruse, disclose, disseminate, copy or use the
message in any way. If you have received this message in error, please notify us
immediately by return email and then destroy the original message. This communication
may be accessed or retained by Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency for information
assurance purposes.
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TRANSPORT

RESPONSE
TEAM e

= Ministry of Transport
g TE MANATU WAKA

ALERT LEVEL 1: COVID-19 Guidance for Transport
Operators

Last updated: 0950 hours, 12 March 2021

This guidance is applicable to operators for the provision of all transport services, including public
transport, aviation, maritime and other land-based passenger services. To the extent that it is relevant, it
may also be used by organisations transporting passengers without hire or reward.

It is intended to be read in conjunction with official information about COVID19 Alert Level 1 contained
on, or linked from, the covid19.govt.nz webpage and on the Ministry of Transport website.

Since this guidance was last published (on 10 March 2021):

e the government has announced that at 11.59am on 12 March 2021, Auckland will move to Alert
Level 1, and the rest of New Zealand will remain at Alert Level 1;

e confirmation has been received that face coverings do not need to be worn by persons using:
micro-mobility services, car-share services, or rental vehicles;

e confirmation has been received that QR codes do not need to be displayed: on micro-mobility
services, in car-share services, or in rental vehicles;

e the exemption for wearing face coverings on ‘jet boat services’, has been broadened to include
all ship services with no enclosed spaces and that meet certain other conditions (e.g. water
taxis).

Executive summary

1.

w

The government has announced that at 11.59pm on 12 March 2021, Auckland will move to Alert
Level 1, and the rest of New Zealand will remain at Alert Level 1.

There are no restrictions on travel.

There are no physical distancing requirements at Alert Level 1.

Drivers, staff, and passengers on public transport services will be required to wear face coverings
(with some exceptions). Passengers of small passenger vehicle services will not need to wear masks,
but drivers of these services will. Exemptions also apply to pre-booked public transport bus and train
services (that meet certain conditions), and ship services with no enclosed spaces and that meet
certain other conditions (e.g. jet boats and water taxis). Also, face coverings do not need to be worn
by persons using: micro-mobility services (e.g. e-scooter services), car-share services, or rental
vehicles.

Operators are required to support contact tracing. Most transport operators are required to display
QR codes. Public transport services that require passengers to provide their name and a contact
phone number (in order to use the service) do not need to display QR codes. Also, QR codes do not
need to be displayed: on micro-mobility services, in car-share services, or in rental vehicles
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

ALERT LEVEL 1

9. The government has announced that at 11.59am on 12 March 2021, Auckland will move to Alert Level 1,
and the rest of New Zealand will remain at Alert Level 1.

10. There are no travel restrictions.
Advice for traveling safely under Alert Level 1
11. We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. Travellers:

e Should be kind and patient with each other and transport staff, especially drivers or crew.

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
Tracer App (where QR codes are not available); OR keep a manual record if they do not have a
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

12. We recommend operators encourage their passengers and users to follow the safe travel tips (list above)
and by publically displaying COVID-19 educational posters on site, and through social media and public
announcements (e.g. in terminals and on-board).

About this guidance

13. This guidance outlines key information for transport service operators under Alert Level 1. Specifically,
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
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14. If you require further information or advice, please email the Ministry of Transport at:
essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz.

15. If you would like access to collateral, including posters for your transport assets (e.g. buses, trains) or
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

16. When considering workplace health and safety arrangements, transport operators should consider:

e any advice or guidance issued by Worksafe https://worksafe.govt.nz/managing-health-
and-safety/novel-coronavirus-covid/

e any advice or guidance issued by the Ministry of Health
https://www.health.govt.nz/our-work/diseases-and-conditions/covid-19-novel-
coronavirus (where this may be relevant to their health and safety arrangements).

Section 2: Physical distancing

Public transport services

17. Physical distancing does not need to be observed on board public transport services at Alert Level 1;
however, passengers are still encouraged to physically distance where possible.

Airports, bus stations, train stations, and ferry terminals

18. Physical distancing does not need to be observed at airports, bus stations, train stations, or ferry
terminals.

Section 3: Face coverings
Who needs to wear a face covering?

19. Drivers, staff, and passengers on public transport services are required to wear face coverings. However,
there are some exemptions; these include:

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

o pre-booked public transport bus or train services that:
= require all passengers to provide their name and a contact telephone number (in
order to use the service); and
= provide allocated seating for all passengers.

o ship services that have:
= no enclosed space for passengers (e.g. jet boats and water taxis), and
=  onwhich—

* conditions compromise the effectiveness of face coverings in preventing,
or limiting the risk of, the outbreak or spread of COVID-19 (e.g. the face
covering is likely to get wet); or

* the wearing of face coverings compromises passenger safety.

o school transport services (meaning dedicated school services contracted by: the Ministry
of Education, or Local Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport), or

Last updated: 0950 hours, 12 March 2021
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o charter services and charter tours.

20. Additionally, face coverings do not need to be worn by persons using: micro-mobility
services, car-share services, or rental vehicles.

What kind of face covering can be used?

21. Any face covering that adequately covers the mouth and nostrils can be used, this includes: single use
disposable masks, washable reusable masks (whether purchased or homemade), or other types of face
coverings (e.g. a scarf wrapped around the face).

Is anybody exempt from wearing a mask?

22. Yes. Transport operators should be aware that the following persons are not required to wear face
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

23. In addition, transport operators should note that the use of face coverings is not required in the
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
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24. Information from the Ministry of Health, regarding the use of face coverings in the community, is
available here.

What about enforcement?

25. The obligation to wear a face covering on public transport is the responsibility of the individual.

26. Operators, drivers and staff are not expected to assume the role of enforcement officer; but they still
have their usual customer relations role to remind people about face coverings. The role is to educate

and encourage passengers to do the right thing, but not be the enforcer.

27. Staff are not expected to refuse boarding to people who do not have a face covering. This kind of issue
should be dealt with as you would normally manage a difficult passenger situation.

28. Passengers and staff should not be encouraged to call Police if someone is not wearing a face covering.
As per normal procedures, if the situation is dangerous or a passenger is displaying threatening
behaviour, for example, Police should be called.

Should operators be encouraging and educating passengers about wearing face coverings?

29. Yes, the support of operators and staff in encouraging and educating passengers about the wearing of
face coverings is appreciated. A range of collateral is provided with this guidance including posters which
operators are asked to display across their fleets, terminals, stations and other facilities. A script to

support social media messaging and PA announcements is attached at Appendix 1 to this guidance.

30. The government will continue to remind people to follow the instructions of the public transport
workforce regarding face coverings.

31. These messages will be reinforced through a major All of Government public communications campaign,
including COVID-19 TV advertising.

Section 4: Supporting contact tracing
What is contact tracing and why is itimportant?

32. The purpose of contact tracing is to prevent potential onward transmission, raise awareness about the
disease and its symptoms and support early detection of suspected cases.

33. Itis important that everyone undertakes practicable actions to support a quick and robust contact
tracing process. Contact tracing (coupled with testing and quarantine/isolation measures) is a critical
pillar in supporting New Zealand’s goal to eliminate COVID-19.

Who undertakes contact tracing?

34, Contact tracing is undertaken by Public Health Units (in the DHB where the confirmed or probable case
was diagnosed), or by the Ministry of Health’s National Close Contact Service.

35. When there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19, a contact tracing process will occur to:

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

What's the difference between a close contact and a casual contact?

36.

37.

Generally, a ‘close contact’ is someone who has been within 2 metres for more than 15 minutes of a
confirmed or probable case of COVID-19. The full definition of ‘close contact’ is available on page 13
of this factsheet: https://www.health.govt.nz/system/files/documents/pages/advice-for-health-
professionals-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-27aug2020.pdf

A ‘casual contact’ is someone who may have been in contact with a confirmed or probable case of
COVID-19, but more than 2m apart or for less 15 minutes.

What should regional authorities and transport operators do to support contact tracing?

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

At all Alert Levels, transport operators are required to support contact tracing.

Regional authorities, and transport operators, are required to display QR codes that are compatible with
the NZ COVID Tracer App for their transport assets. Those QR codes need to be displayed in an easily
accessible prominent place.

Public transport services are not required to obtain and display QR codes if they require all passengers to
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

In addition school transport services (meaning dedicated school services contracted by: the Ministry of
Education, or Local Authority, or School Board, or Auckland Transport) do not need to display QR codes.
Also, QR codes do not need to be displayed: on micro-mobility services, in car-share services, or in rental
vehicles.

Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should also take steps to
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

7
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their transport service?

43. If there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19 on a transport service, a health official will
notify the regional authority (in the case of public transport) and/or operator and request your
support with identifying the contacts of that person. The health official will be particularly
interested in details you might have of any people who were in ‘close contact” with the COVID-19
case on the bus/train/ferry they are investigating.

44. For example, you may be asked to review CCTV footage, or online passenger registers (e.g. public
transport electronic ticketing card registration details).

45. The health official may also ask you to provide any contact information you might have for people
who were in ‘casual contact’ with the COVID-19 case on the bus/train/ferry/aircraft they are
investigating. This is so they can ask these ‘casual contacts’ to get tested if they have (or develop)
symptoms of COVID-19.

46. If you do not have this information (but are not certain that that there were no ‘close contacts’) the
health official will discuss with you what action should be taken. For example, they may request
that you undertake public messaging asking people that travelled on the service to contact the
COVID-19 Healthline.

47. If you are certain that there were no ‘close contacts’ (e.g. CCTV footage shows no ‘close contacts’
were established), then you should advise the health official of this and ask if there is anything
more that you should do.

Section 5: Cleaning

48. Transport operators should apply cleaning practices consistent with Ministry of Health guidance.
e Ministry of Health general guidance on cleaning can be found here
e Ministry of Health cleaning FAQs can be found here

49. Cleaning regimes should include:

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
50. Transport operators are not expected, or required, to enforce passenger compliance with:
e the Order, or
e  Ministry of Health guidelines.

51. Transport operators may, however, choose to stop passengers boarding, where it is lawful to do so
on health and safety grounds as per their standard operating procedures.

52. Transport operators may also provide advice to passengers for travelling safely for example by
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
You are required to wear a face covering on public transport during alert level 1

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
You are required to wear a face covering on public transport at alert level 1

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
enter the terminal at alert level 1 .

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
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From: Lindsay Chappell - AWUNZ

To: Stewart Gibbon

Cc: Nigel Piper; Glenn Ritchie; Ben Barlow; Xxoxxxx@XxxX. XX XXXX.XXXX @XXXX. XX.XX;
XXXXXXXXX@XXXXXXK XXX ;- XXX XXX @XXXX XX XK XXXXXXXXKXXXKXXX @XXXXX XXX

Subject: RE: Exemptions

Date: Tuesday, 2 March 2021 9:30:43 am

Morning Stewart

Thanks for your email. | have followed up and put out a message via Social Media and email to
ALL our members at Ritchie’s & Go Bus encouraging wearing of masks

Any exemptions should be supported by a Drs note.
We note that there is a form of “This Driver is Exempt
way of a card type arrangement.

| think if this was made available to Drivers it may be of assistance to stop the criticism from
public.

| have copied Employers & Delegates

| trust this is of assistance and will see you at 4pm

Kind Regards

VAN

Thankyou for your understanding” by

Lindsay Chappell
Assistant Secretary

PO Box 1099 | CHRISTCHURCH 8140

22 Birmingham Drive,Level 1

P: 03 366 0519 | M: 029 450 0080 | F: 03 03 379 7697

E: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX@XXXXX.XX.XX W www.awunz.co.nz W: www.tmfnz.co.nz

CAUTION: This email message and accompanying data may contain information and privileged information that is
confidential and proprietary to the Amalgamated Workers Union New Zealand Southern Incorporated. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is
prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of this message
and any attachments. Thank you.

From: Stewart Gibbon <xXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Sent: Monday, 1 March 2021 2:33 PM

To: Lindsay Chappell - AWUNZ <XXXXXXX.XXXXXXXX @ XXXXX.XX.XX>

Subject: Exemptions

Hi Lindsay

Trust things are well with you.

Lindsay, we are getting media interest in mask compliance of drivers currently. One media
person is taking photos as asking if drivers are exempt.

| understand the Union is not in favour of drivers displaying exemption certificates in vehicle.
Keen to get an understanding of this, as it does seem customers and media are particularly
interested in driver compliance

Also, you will be aware that we have provide quite a bit of information and input to Operators,
as well as a letter to drivers re the importance of compliance by drivers, recognizing that there
are many reasons why a driver might be exempt. ECAN fully accepts and respects this and will
support drivers where they are exempt.

Keen to get your perspective on this issue of compliance both in terms of Union position and
comms and obligations on parties to monitor and gain surety on compliance, and on exemption
certificates. We note this is being done in other regions
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Thanks
Stewart

Stewart Gibbon Environment Canterbury
Senior Manager Public Transport
Environment Canterbury

Christchurch Office

PO Box 345, Christchurch 8140
Customer Services: 0800 324 636
24 Hours: 0800 76 55 88

ecan.govt.nz

covid19.govt.nz

+64 27 548 4776
XXXXXXX XXXXXX@XXXX . XXXX XX
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From: COVID-19 Response Team

To: Brenda O"Donoghue; Brent Johnston (Ministry of Transport); COVID-19 Response Team; Danielle Bachler;
Deborah Hume; Delaney Myers; Emma Barraclough; EFreya Proctor; Helen Presland; Helen White (Ministry
of Transport); Ian Stuart; Jacob McElwee; Jacqui Sadler; Lucy Nie; Michelle McCormick; National Emergency
Response Team; Nick Hunter; Peter Cockrem; Rebekah Duffin; Sarah Taylor

Subject: FINAL AL2 and 3 Transport Operator Guidance 28 Feb 2021 - with correct links
Date: Sunday, 28 February 2021 9:49:42 am

Attachments: AL 2 and 3 Transport Operator Guidance 28 February 2021 FINAL PDF.pdf
Morena,

Please see the attached Final Guidelines with corrected links.

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

Last updated: 0922 hrs, 28 February 2021

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

Since this guidance was last published (on 22 February 2021) possible community transmission is under
investigation in Auckland. At 0600 hours on 28 February 2021, Auckland moved to Alert Level 3, and the
rest of New Zealand moved to Alert Level 2, for a period of 7 days.

Executive summary

Possible community transmission is under investigation in Auckland. At 0600 hours on 28 February
2021 Auckland moved to Alert Level 3, and the rest of New Zealand moved to Alert Level 2 for a
period of 7 days.

The Alert Level 3 area is defined by Schedule 4 and Schedule 5 in the Order.

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

With respect to public transport services travelling between the Auckland Alert level 3 area, and the
rest of New Zealand, physical distancing needs to be observed to the extent practicable (please see
paragraph 18).

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

Last updated: 28 February 2021, 0922 hours
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ALERT LEVELS2 & 3

4. Possible community transmission is under investigation in Auckland. At 0600 hours on 28 February 2021
Auckland moved to Alert Level 3, and the rest of New Zealand moved to Alert Level 2, for a period of 7

days.

5. The Alert Level 3 area is defined by Schedule 4 and Schedule 5 in the Order.

6. Interregional travel between the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) and the Alert Level 2 Area (rest of New
Zealand) will be restricted. Travel within the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) will also be restricted.

Advice for traveling safely under Alert Level 3

7. We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. We recommend travellers:

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

8. We all need to remain vigilant in the battle against COVID-19. We recommend travellers:

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
9. We recommend operators encourage their passengers and users to follow the safe travel tips (list above)
and by publically displaying COVID-19 educational posters on site, and through social media and public
announcements (e.g. in terminals and on-board).

About this guidance

10. This guidance outlines key information for transport service operators under Alert Level 2 and 3.
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

If you require further information or advice, please email the Ministry of Transport at:
essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz.

If you would like access to collateral, including posters for your transport assets (e.g. buses, trains) or facility
(e.g. terminals, platforms), please email the Ministry of Transport at: essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz.

Last updated: 28 February 2021, 0922 hours
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Section 1: Workplace health and safety

11. When considering workplace health and safety arrangements, transport operators should consider:

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
12. Effective 0600 hours on 28 February 2021, interregional travel between the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland)
and the Alert Level 2 Area (the rest of New Zealand) will be restricted. Travel is only permitted for the
following reasons:
o travelling:

= to provide an service or business listed in [Schedule 3] of Order; or

= to provide an service or business listed in an exemption gazetted by the Director-
General of Health; or

= asaperson who is exempted from the Order, pursuant to clause 45; or as an
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

13. Transport operators should not carry passengers, between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand,
which are not travelling for a permitted reason. In some cases passengers are required to provide
documentary evidence to support their reason for travel. Recommended documents, which the
passenger must/should provide to support their reason for travel, can be found at Appendix B. If you
are uncertain about the situation with respect to permitted movements, please email
essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz

Travel within Auckland

14. Travel within the Alert Level 3 Area (Auckland) is also be restricted. Travel is only permitted for the
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



mailto:xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx



TE MANATL WAKA

=)= iri
= "E- Ministry of Transport

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
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15. Transport operators should not carry passengers within Auckland, which are not travelling for a
permitted reason. However it is understood that it may not be practicable to check that passengers
are travelling for a permitted reason. If you are uncertain about the situation with respect to
permitted movements, please email essentialtransport@transport.govt.nz

Travel in the Alert Level 2 area (rest of New Zealand)
16. There are no travel restrictions in the Alert level 2 area.
17. Travellers are advised to follow the safe travel tips for the Alert level 2 area, at paragraph 8.
Section 3: Physical distancing

Public transport services — Alert Level 3, Auckland

18. Air passenger services and small passenger vehicle services travelling within, to, from, or
through Auckland, are required to maintain physical distancing to the extent practicable:

o with respect to air passenger services, please note the Ministry of Health (the MoH)
has agreed that for a 72 hour period, physical distancing on an aircraft is not likely
to be reasonably practicable, given it will require numbers of people to be
disembarked from the aircraft with little time to manage passengers. This approach
will be reviewed before the cessation of the 72 hour period.

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

19. On board other public transport services travelling within, to, from, or through Auckland,
physical distancing is generally required at a distance of 1 metre to the extent practical
(taking into account the nature of the service).

20. Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should also issue public
messaging that discourages people who are unwell from using their services.

Public transport services — Alert Level 2, rest of New Zealand

21. Physical distancing does not need to be observed on board public transport services at Alert Level 2
(and which are not travelling to, from, or through Auckland); however, passengers are still
encouraged to physically distance where possible.

22. Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should issue public
messaging that discourages people who are unwell from using their services.

23. Additionally, it is recommended that some physical separation of the passengers from the driver
compartment is maintained.

Airports, bus stations, train stations, and ferry terminals - Alert Levels 2 & 3, all of New Zealand

24. 1 metre distance between people and passengers at the airport or terminal is required (unless they
are travelling together within their ‘bubble’ or ‘extended bubble’).

Last updated: 28 February 2021, 0922 hours



mailto:xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx



=)= iri
= '.E Ministry of Transport

TE MANATL WAKA

Enabilirg Mew Zealanders to flourlizh

Section 3: Face coverings

Who needs to wear a face covering?
25. Drivers, staff, and passengers on public transport services are required to wear face coverings.
26. However, there are some exemptions, these include:

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
27. Any face covering that adequately covers the mouth and nostrils can be used, these include: single
use disposable masks, washable reusable masks (whether purchased or homemade), or other types of
face coverings (e.g. a scarf wrapped around the face).

Is anybody exempt from wearing a mask?

28. Yes. Transport operators should be aware that the following persons are not required to wear face
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

29. In addition, transport operators should note that the use of face coverings is not required in the
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
by the conditions of carriage), (Please note: the Ministry of Health advises that the eating of
food and drink should be discouraged on services at Alert levels 2 and 3).

o if thereis a reasonable excuse not to wear a face covering.

30. Information from the Ministry of Health, regarding the use of face coverings in the community, is
available here.

What about enforcement?
31. The obligation to wear a face covering on public transport is the responsibility of the individual.

32. Operators, drivers and staff are not expected to assume the role of enforcement officer; but they still
have their usual customer relations role to remind people about face coverings. The role is to educate
and encourage passengers to do the right thing, but not be the enforcer.

33. Staff are not expected to refuse boarding to people who do not have a face covering. This kind of
issue should be dealt with as you would normally manage a difficult passenger situation.

34. Passengers and staff should not be encouraged to call Police if someone is not wearing a face
covering. As per normal procedures, if the situation is dangerous or a passenger is displaying
threatening behaviour, for example, Police should be called.

Should operators be encouraging and educating passengers about wearing face coverings?

35. Yes, the support of operators and staff in encouraging and educating passengers about the wearing of
face coverings is appreciated. A range of collateral is provided with this guidance including posters
which operators are asked to display across their fleets, terminals, stations and other facilities. A
script to support social media messaging and PA announcements is attached at Appendix 1 to this
guidance.

36. The government will continue to remind people to follow the instructions of the public transport
workforce regarding face coverings.

37. These messages will be reinforced through a major All of Government public communications
campaign, including COVID-19 TV advertising.
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Section 4: Supporting contact tracing
What is contact tracing and why is it important?

38. The purpose of contact tracing is to prevent potential onward transmission, raise awareness about
the disease and its symptoms and support early detection of suspected cases.

39. It is important that everyone undertakes practicable actions to support a quick and robust contact
tracing process. Contact tracing (coupled with testing and quarantine/isolation measures) is a critical
pillar in supporting New Zealand’s goal to eliminate COVID-19.

Who undertakes contact tracing?

40. Contact tracing is undertaken by Public Health Units (in the DHB where the confirmed or probable
case was diagnosed), or by the Ministry of Health’s National Close Contact Service.

41. When there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19, a contact tracing process will occur to:

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

42. Generally, a ‘close contact’ is someone who has been within 2 metres for more than 15 minutes of
a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19. The full definition of ‘close contact’ is available on page
13 of this factsheet: https://www.health.govt.nz/system/files/documents/pages/advice-for-health-
professionals-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-27aug2020.pdf

43. A ‘casual contact’ is someone who may have been in contact with a confirmed or probable case of
COVID-19, but more than 2m apart or for less 15 minutes.

What should regional authorities and transport operators do to support contact tracing?

44. Under Alert Levels 2 and 3, transport operators are required to support contact tracing.

45. Regional authorities, and transport operators, are required to display QR codes that are compatible
with the NZ COVID Tracer App for their transport assets. Those QR codes need to be displayed in an
easily accessible prominent place.

46. Public transport services are not required to obtain and display QR codes if they require all passengers
to provide their name and a contact telephone number (in order to use the service); these may
include services, such as:

o air passenger services,
o interregional bus services,

o interregional passenger train services.

47. In addition the following services do not need to obtain and display QR codes:

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

48. Regional authorities (in the case of public transport) and transport operators should also take steps to
promote and enable users and passengers to keep records for contact tracing purposes. We
recommend transport operators issue public messaging (e.g. through posters, announcements, social
media) to encourage users and passengers to:

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

49. If there is a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19 on a transport service, a health official will
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

50. For example, you may be asked to review CCTV footage, or online passenger registers (e.g. public
transport electronic ticketing card registration details).

51. The health official may also ask you to provide any contact information you might have for
people who were in ‘casual contact’ with the COVID-19 case on the bus/train/ferry/aircraft they
are investigating. This is so they can ask these ‘casual contacts’ to get tested if they have (or
develop) symptoms of COVID-19.

52. If you do not have this information (but are not certain that that there were no ‘close contacts’)
the health official will discuss with you what action should be taken. For example, they may
request that you undertake public messaging asking people that travelled on the service to
contact the COVID-19 Healthline.

53. If you are certain that there were no ‘close contacts’ (e.g. CCTV footage shows no ‘close contacts’
were established), then you should advise the health official of this and ask if there is anything
more that you should do.

Section 5: Cleaning
54. Transport operators should apply cleaning practices consistent with Ministry of Health guidance.

o Ministry of Health general guidance on cleaning can be found here

o Ministry of Health cleaning FAQs can be found here

11
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55. Cleaning regimes should include:

o cleaning the vehicle/vessel/aircraft regularly with particular attention to high-touch surfaces
(where possible, at the end of each shift/sailing/flight, but at least at the end of each day).

o asfar as practicable, frequent cleaning of high-touch surfaces throughout the day.
Section 6: Customer compliance
Travel restrictions

56. Transport operators are not required to enforce passenger compliance with travel restrictions,
however transport operators:

i. should not carry passengers, between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand, which are not
travelling for a permitted reason,

ii. should not carry passengers, within Auckland, which are not travelling for a permitted reason.
However it is understood that it may not be practicable to check that passengers are travelling

for a permitted reason.

57. Transport operators should encourage potential passengers to check what the current restrictions
are prior to making a booking or using their services.

58. The New Zealand Police will enforce compliance with travel restrictions with respect to land transport
(particularly at the Alert Level 2/3 boundary), and the Aviation Security Service will check compliance
with travel restrictions with respect to air transport. Ferry operators can contact the New Zealand
Police if enforcement of travel restrictions is required with respect to their services.

Other public health measures

59. With respect to the other public health measures, transport operators are not expected, or required,
to enforce passenger compliance with:

o the COVID-19 Public Health Response (Alert Levels 3 and 2) Order (No 3) 2020, or
o Ministry of Health guidelines.

60. Transport operators, however, may choose to stop passengers boarding, where it is lawful to do
so on health and safety grounds as per their standard operating procedures.

61. Transport operators may also provide advice to passengers for travelling safely for example by
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

15



https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0031/latest/LMS451879.html?search=sw_096be8ed81a8343c_accommodation_25_se&p=1

https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0031/latest/LMS451879.html?search=sw_096be8ed81a8343c_accommodation_25_se&p=1

https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0031/latest/LMS451846.html?search=sw_096be8ed81a8343c_accommodation_25_se&p=1



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

e documentation that helps explain the situation (e.g. proof of residence that shows that
both persons reside at the same residence).

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

20






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

Travelling to collect/accompany a tlpapaku or
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
Health); or

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

23







From: Stewart Gibbon

To: Tracey MclLellan MP

Cc: Governance; Ros March; Katherine Trought

Subject: RE: Constituent enquiry

Date: Thursday, 25 February 2021 4:44:00 pm

Attachments: FINAL Transport operator guidance and collateral for alert level 1.pdf

Kia ora Tracey
Thanks for your query. We have been receiving a few queries of this nature ourselves from
customers of our service.
Attached find the transport guidance provided to us from Waka Kotahi on behalf of Ministry of
Transport. This guidance summaries the requirements for transport operators from the health
order issued for the most recent change to Alert level 1.
To respond to the specific points raised | direct you to the following item in the guidance
document:
Wearing of Masks

e Page 1, Executive Summary ltem 3.

e Page 2, item 9 bullet 3

e Page 4, Section 3 Face Coverings
Exemptions to Wearing Masks

e Pageb5ltem 21, 22
Monitoring or Ensuring Compliance

e Page 1, Executive Summary Item 7

o Page 6 Items 26 - 29
You will note from the information the clear messaging that operators are not responsible for
ensuring compliance of wearing a face covering. The key element here is that neither bus
operators or local authorities have the legislative powers to do so. Only NZ Police have the
legislative power to enforce a specific requirement set out in a Health Order. The guidance make
sit clear that is a personal responsibility to adhere to the health order requirement
The guidance also makes it clear that there are a wide range of valid reasons why a person may
not be wearing a face covering on public transport, hence the key message under ltem 9 on page
2 around kindness and patience.
We appreciate that some people may find the situation on public transport confusing. It is
important to understand the wider content of the Health order to fully appreciated why some
people appear to not be complying.
Environment Canterbury have been overt in its communications to our community and
customers regarding the characteristics of the Health order with respect to face coverings on
Public Transport in an effort to educate and reassure people that many people, including some
drivers, are exempt from wearing a face covering on public transport and we should continue to
be respectful and kind, while taking responsibility for our own actions and behaviours
| trust this helps to clarify the situation.

From: Tracey McLellan MP <XXXXXX.XXXXXXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXXX. XXXX. XX>

Sent: Thursday, February 25, 2021 1:29 PM

To: Stewart Gibbon <XXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Subject: Constituent enquiry

Importance: High

Hi Stewart

I've received an enquiry from a constituent who has raised concerns around the mandatory
wearing of masks on all forms of public transport, which is required under Level One. The
constituent has been using buses recently which all have signs on the windows advising patrons
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





slh= Mini
>'$ Ministry of Transport

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
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of the requirement for mandatory use of face masks. However, not all patrons are adhering to
this condition and there does not appear to be anyone on the bus to ensure the requirement is
being met by bus patrons.

I’d appreciate receiving your advice on how non-compliance of this mandatory requirement is
being monitored/dealt with by ECan and whether consideration has been given to having
‘inspectors’ on buses to ensure the safety of all passengers.

Nga mihi nui

Elaine Greaves

MP Support for Dr Tracey McLellan, MP for Banks Peninsula

Banks Peninsula Electorate Office

642 Ferry Road, Woolston | PO Box 19 661, Woolston, Christchurch 8241

T | Waea: [03] 376 4512

E | IMEra: XXXXXX.XXXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXXX.XXXX. XX

W | Pae Tukutuku: www.parliament.nz

Authorised by Tracey McLellan, 642 Ferry Road, Woolston, Christchurch
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From: Ben Barlow

To: Stewart Gibbon
Subject: RE: Letter from CEO
Date: Thursday, 25 February 2021 1:41:31 pm

Thanks Stewart- We will aim to send this out via email to all CHCH urban staff tomorrow
afternoon.

Regards,

Ben

From: Stewart Gibbon <xXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Sent: Thursday, 25 February 2021 12:10 pm

To: Ben Barlow <xxx.XxxxXX @ XXXXX.XX.XX>

Subject: Letter from CEO

Hi ben

Here is the letter from our CEO for distribution to all drivers
Can you confirm when it will be distributed and how

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
XXXXXXXXXXXXX@XXXX . XXXX XX

covid19.govt.nz
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From: Stewart Gibbon

To:

Subject: CEO letter

Date: Thursday, 25 February 2021 12:13:00 pm
Attachments: 2021-02-25 CHCH letter to drivers from CEO.pdf
Hi Paul

Letter from our CEO attached for distribution

Thanks

Stewart


mailto:xxxxxxx.xxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx

25 February 2021

Kia ora,

The last several months have seen significant change to our public transport network,
none of which would be possible without the commitment of our drivers.
| extend my thanks to you for supporting and enabling these changes to occur.

COVID-19 continues to be a challenge for our community. With the Government making face
coverings mandatory on public transport at Alert Level 1, it requires continued effort from
everyone to keep themselves and others safe while using the service.

As the consistent professional face of our public transport service, drivers have a key role to
play in helping us encourage people to do the right thing.

| appreciate that at times wearing a face covering may feel uncomfortable, however it is
critical that our drivers lead by example. Doing so, shows our community and team of five
million how we can maintain the freedoms we currently enjoy, ensure the delivery of public
transport continues, and protect ourselves and each other during this time.

There are valid reasons why some drivers and community members may be exempt

from wearing a face covering on public transport and it is important that we respect this,
while maintaining the professionalism, courtesy, and kindness that our community expects
and enjoys from our public transport team.

| also wanted to recognise the contribution you have made to our customer satisfaction
results from the recently completed Metro user survey. The most recent survey delivered a
96% satisfaction rate which is an excellent outcome. Two items of note that | would like to
highlight are:

e the increase of 7% in positive response to driver behaviour; and
e personal safety and security continuing to be a key area of satisfaction.

Thank you again for your continued support and commitment to the delivery of our service
and your commitment to lead by example while we respond to COVID-19.

Yours sincerely

%@m

Dr Stefanie Rixecker

Chief Executive






From: Stewart Gibbon

To:

Subject: Letter from CEO

Date: Thursday, 25 February 2021 12:09:00 pm
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






From: Michelle Clemence

To: Stewart Gibbon
Subject: Re: Letter to Drivers from ECAN CEO
Date: Thursday, 25 February 2021 9:53:24 am

Hi Stewart, I will put this up on screen. I’'m in WLG today but will see if [ can log in
remotely and sort it or will do it first thing

Kind regards,
Michelle Clemence
Sent from my iPhone

On 25/02/2021, at 8:26 AM, Stewart Gibbon
<KX Wrote:

Hi Both

Our CEO is wanting to send the below letter to all drivers/skippers/crew on our
Urban and School services.

Can you advise the best way to achieve this

Thanks

Stewart

Kia ora,

The last several months have seen significant change to our public transport
network, none of which would be possible without the commitment of our drivers. |
extend my thanks to you for supporting and enabling these changes to occur.
COVID-19 continues to be a challenge for our community. With the Government
making face coverings mandatory on public transport at Alert Level 1, it requires
continued effort from everyone to keep themselves and others safe while using the
service.

As the consistent professional face of our public transport service, drivers have a key
role to play in helping us encourage people to do the right thing.

| appreciate that at times wearing a face covering may feel uncomfortable, however
it is critical that our drivers lead by example. Doing so, shows our community and
team of five million how we can maintain the freedoms we currently enjoy, ensure
the delivery of public transport continues, and protect ourselves and each other
during this time.

There are valid reasons why some drivers and community members may be exempt
from wearing a face covering on public transport and it is important that we respect
this, while maintaining the professionalism, courtesy, and kindness that our
community expects and enjoys from our public transport team.

| also wanted to recognise the contribution you have made to our customer
satisfaction results from the recently completed Metro user survey. The most recent
survey delivered a 96% satisfaction rate which is an excellent outcome. Two items of
note that | would like to highlight are:

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->e <!l--[endif]-->the increase of 7% in positive response to
driver behaviour; and
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<|--[if IsupportLists]-->e <|--[endif]-->personal safety and security continuing to
be a key area of satisfaction.
Thank you again for your continued support and commitment to the delivery of our
service and your commitment to lead by example while we respond to COVID-19.
Nga mihi,
Stefanie Rixecker
CEO Environment Canterbury
END

Stewart Gibbon

Senior Manager Public Transport
Environment Canterbury

Christchurch Office

PO Box 345, Christchurch 8140
Customer Services: 0800 324 636
24 Hours: 0800 76 55 88
ecan.govt.nz

+64 27 548 4776

XXXXXXX. XXXXXX@XXXX.XXXX.XX
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From: Dave Rutledge

To: Stewart Gibbon

Cc: Ben Barlow; Jeremy Dickson

Subject: RE: Mask Summary

Date: Wednesday, 24 February 2021 8:12:33 am
Stewart,

Further to our previous correspondence | can assure you that Go Bus has continued to
encourage and promote our eligible staff wearing face masks as expected under the current
Alert Level guidance. Additional promotion has also been undertaken this week at the depot and
on the road during our recent self-audits. We will continue to work with staff to ensure that Go
Bus staff are meeting the Covid-19 Guidance and best practice regardless of Alert Level. This will
be over and above our responsibility to ensure wider awareness of the risks, providing PPE and
undertaking the additional cleaning controls which are currently in place across Christchurch.
Our annual Metro training has commenced this week, and this is also an opportunity to work
with our staff in small groups to help manage our ongoing Covid-19 response and to help clarify
expectations around such issues as mask wearing. We have 40+ sessions of specific Metro
training scheduled between now and the end of the year which is very positive.

Go Bus Christchurch has a significant number of staff who have previously provided medical
certificates to confirm medical advice that they are exempt from wearing masks. Based on the
current guidance we do also note that an exemption card is not actually required and staff who
wear glasses are also exempt along with other “reasonable excuses” for not wearing a mask.

-COVID-19 Public Health Response (Alert Level Requirements) Order (No 3) 2021 (L1 2021/13)

Contents — New Zealand Legislation
Go Bus will continue to work collaboratively with our staff and ECan to ensure that we are

compliant with the current guidance. Lyndsay at the AWUNZ has confirmed that he is not
currently supportive of any staff displaying an exemption card. Based on the above updated
requirements and his rationale this approach does not currently seem unreasonable. |
understand through Ben, that ECan is looking to draft a letter from your CEO to help promote
some key messages to Christchurch staff which sounds very beneficial. | am confident this
gesture will be well received. Go Bus is happy to help draft/ reviews any messaging to support
ongoing success and ongoing safe operation of the network in any way possible.

Please don’t hesitate to give me a call if you have any questions?

Kind regards,

Dave

David Rutledge

M 021 724 980 | E david.rutledge@gobus.co.nz | Check us out www.gobus.co.nz

From: Stewart Gibbon <xXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Sent: Monday, 22 February 2021 6:46 pm

To: Dave Rutledge <xxxX.XXXXXXXX @ XXXXX.XX.XX>

Cc: Ben Barlow <xxx.Xxxxxx@xxxxx.xx.xx>; Jeremy Dickson <Jeremy.Dickson@ecan.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Mask Summary

Thanks David

There is little else we can do re customer compliance aside from the messaging processes we are
doing and leading by example. | think the latter is the most overt influencer

The Health Order instructions are clear that we cannot refuse carriage on the basis of non mask
compliance, we cannot ask why someone is not wearing a mask and we cannot have the driver
enforce wearing

What we can do though is ensure staff are compliant. This is particularly relevant as it falls into
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the Health & Safety compliance space. As a PCBU for PT we have an obligation to ensure that our
operators are doing all things practicable to comply.

The exception certificates displayed on buses will be a big help, with the rest wearing a mask
Thanks

Stewart

Sent from my iPhone

On 22/02/2021, at 6:05 PM, Dave Rutledge <xxXX.XXXXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX__> Wrote:

Hi Stewart and thanks for the summary.

Our audits at the Interchange match your numbers with an average of 75%, driver
compliance. Indicatively, driver compliance is slightly higher on the Orbiter but a lot
lower from members of the public. During my time at the interchange today |
witnessed some very low passenger compliance, some busses arrived with less than
10% compliance, however none with 0% compliance as we have been receiving as
feedback.

We have been communicating and reinforcing mandatory masks wearing (as Ben
has relayed) while at the same time working through the exemptions presented to
us formally and informally by staff. Like you, we are concerned by the wider
landscape of poor compliance and are promoting a “lead by example approach”
which we hope our staff and our passengers will get behind.

Kind regards

Dave

David Rutledge

M 021 724 980 | E david.rutledge@gobus.co.nz | Check us out www.gobus.co.nz

From: Ben Barlow <xxX.XXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX__>

Sent: Monday, 22 February 2021 10:27 am

To: Dave Rutledge <xxXX.XXXXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX__>

Subject: FW: Mask summary

From: Stewart Gibbon <xxXXXXX. XXXXXX (@ XXXX XXXX.XX >

Sent: Monday, 22 February 2021 9:19 am

To: Ben Barlow <xxX.XXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX >

Cc: Jeremy Dickson <xxXXXX.XXXXXXX (@ XXXX XXXX.XX__>

Subject: Mask summary

Hi ben

Below a summary of mask wearing from the weekend, and some samples that you

can use to explore
Regards

Stewart
<image001l.png>
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Stewart Gibbon Environment Canterbury
Senior Manager Public Transport |E|
Environment Canterbury

Christchurch Office

PO Box 345, Christchurch 8140
Customer Services: 0800 324 636
24 Hours: 0800 76 55 88

ecan.govt.nz

covid19.govt.nz

+64 27 548 4776
XXXXXXXXXXXXX@XXXXXXXX.XX
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
Date: Tuesday, 23 February 2021 2:08:43 pm
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
Requirements) Order (No 3) 2021 (LI 2021/13) Contents — New Zealand Legislation

e The final version of the operator guidance for Alert level 1
¢ Alink to stakeholder collateral, including posters for face coverings -
https://drive.google.com/drive/u/1/folders/ImQ7QW933DR5K_7cqUyNc448BGBYrRjA7
Noho ora mai

Becks

COVID Response Team
E xxx / M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

"bWAKA KOTAHI /' Unite

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
mailto:xxxxxx.xxxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:x.xxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxxx.xxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxx.xxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxx.xxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:x.xxxxxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxx.xxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:x.xxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:x.xxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:x.xxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxx.xxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:x.xxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxx.xxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:x.xxx@xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxxx.xxxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxx.xxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxx.xxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxx.xxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxx.xxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flegislation.govt.nz%2Fregulation%2Fpublic%2F2021%2F0013%2Flatest%2FLMS455538.html%3Fsrc%3Dqs&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7Cd388cdb69bb0463ae3da08d8d7977987%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637496393225354160%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=QVGq2Iqh308Hm8MIZqitGpCsGuO6Dg%2FAjRLfX93m%2Bs0%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flegislation.govt.nz%2Fregulation%2Fpublic%2F2021%2F0013%2Flatest%2FLMS455538.html%3Fsrc%3Dqs&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7Cd388cdb69bb0463ae3da08d8d7977987%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637496393225354160%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=QVGq2Iqh308Hm8MIZqitGpCsGuO6Dg%2FAjRLfX93m%2Bs0%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Fdrive%2Fu%2F1%2Ffolders%2F1mQ7QW933DR5K_7cqUyNc448BGBYrRjA7&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7Cd388cdb69bb0463ae3da08d8d7977987%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637496393225364157%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=CQKsFheB1iQkrwoEZ6jEEwJoqQxFB9l65PQ8ZYFwRZQ%3D&reserved=0
mailto:xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcovid19.govt.nz%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7Cd388cdb69bb0463ae3da08d8d7977987%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637496393225374149%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=E6DUFOl377GxfsPD1qCx%2F81EodGd0iDpA9gmxs%2BS%2F1M%3D&reserved=0

5":: Ministry of Transport

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

Subject: Updated PT Collateral - 23 February 2021
Date: Tuesday, 23 February 2021 9:45:13 am
Morena,

Please find attached the updated collateral for PT (available via this link:
https://drive.google.com/drive/u/1/folders/ImQ7QW933DR5K_7cqUyNc448BGBYrRjA7).
If there is anything specific missing that you need, please don’t hesitate to contact me
Noho ora mai

Becks

Rebekah Duffin / COVID Communications Manager
COVID Response Team
E X0 xx / M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

.,-«-g;w]AKA KOTAHI /' Unite
57 himaysseort against
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

Cc: Jeremy Dickson

Subject: RE: Mask Compliance

Date: Friday, 19 February 2021 4:01:59 pm
Hi Stewart,

Go Bus is fully aware of the importance of our staff wearing masks who are not formally
exempted from doing so. As you have correctly noted this requirement was messaged to our
staff earlier this week in a newsletter. Supporting signage is also currently displayed in both
depot locations. Individual reminders have also been provided this week via Ops Centre when
staff are signing on for work. These reminders will remain ongoing as long as required.

Over the weekend and early next week we will be sure to confirm our understanding of the
number of staff who are exempted from wearing a face covering. It is also worth noting that our
driving staff are unfortunately also receiving angst from passengers who are refusing to wear a
face masks. We appreciate the NZTA and ECan messaging, but we to are concerned about how
some passengers are responding to our staff about the recent changes and the requirement to
wear face masks at Alert Level 1. Please be assured that we are committed to leading by
example and we will do everything we can to continue to support our staff and passenger.

| will be back in touch next week when possible. In the meantime please don’t hesitate to call me
at any stage.

Thanks Ben

From: Stewart Gibbon <xXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>
Sent: Friday, 19 February 2021 3:30 pm
To: Ben Barlow <xxX.XXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX>
Cc: Jeremy Dickson <XXXXXX.XXXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>
Subject: Mask Compliance
Hi Ben
As you will no doubt understand the change to compulsory mask wearing on PT at level 1 is
creating significant angst in the community with the variability of customers and drivers wearing
masks.
Appreciate that you have been messaging this to your drivers and that there are legitimate
exemptions to wearing a mask, however anecdotal evidence suggests a reasonably high level of
non-compliance by drivers. In some case customers are reporting that drivers are advising that
masks are not required which if true is disappointing.
Its imperative that we set the right example in this situation. The situation is having a
reputational impact for all of us currently. It would be useful to understand what proportion of
your drivers fall within the exempt category. You will need to have recorded this to comply with
health and safety requirements. If you could provide this information as a percentage that would
be appreciated.
Today we noted 23% of GB drivers through the interchange not wearing masks in the morning
and 19% in the afternoon. So a 21% average. It would be useful to understand if this aligns with
your expectations based on your exemption approvals.
Can you please:

¢ Maintain the promotion of this compliance requirement to drivers and the importance of

setting an example,

e Validate and advise your exemption numbers as a percentage of drivers

e Complete some sampling yourself to determine compliance rates
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
XXXXXXX XXXXXX@XXXX. XXXX XX
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From: Michelle Clemence

To: Stewart Gibbon; Ben Barlow

Cc: Jeremy Dickson

Subject: RE: Mask Exemption Cards

Date: Friday, 19 February 2021 3:59:37 pm
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Stewart, my couple of drivers | am sure will be happy to get an exemption card as they are
currently using an A4 page taped to the ticket machine. The card is actually less invasive.
Kind regards

Michelle Clemence

Operations Manager Christchurch Urban

Ritchies Transport Holdings Ltd

Ph. 03 3794260

DDI. 03 3713117

Mob 027 4859679
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From: Stewart Gibbon <xXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Sent: Friday, 19 February 2021 3:56 pm

To: Ben Barlow <xxx.xxxxxx@xxxxx.xx.xx>; Michelle Clemence <Michelle@ritchies.co.nz>

Cc: Jeremy Dickson <XXXXXX.XXXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Subject: Mask Exemption Cards

Hi Both

It appears that there is an official exemption card that can be obtained form Ministry of health
for employees to display in their work place.

Go here to and scroll down to near the bottom. Assuming those who are exempt are willing, |
think it would be very useful to display this card in the bus for those drivers who are exempt. Can
you explore this and given consideration to having your drivers display this where they are
exempt. | suggest you would want to check in with AWUNZ before implementing as the union
may see this as an invasion of privacy.
https://covid19.govt.nz/health-and-wellbeing/protect-yourself-and-others/wear-a-face-

covering/#twho-does-not-need-to-wear-a-face-covering

Exemption card for face coverings

We know that some people who have a disability or health condition may not be able to
wear a face covering safely or comfortably. If you cannot wear one, you can get an
exemption card. You can show your exemption card when needed, for example to a bus
driver.

You do not need to have an exemption card, but you may feel more comfortable showing
something official to confirm you cannot wear a face covering.

Get an exemption card

If you think you need an exemption card, call Healthline on 0800 358 5453.
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You can get a printable version, or a card that you can show on your phone. If these are not
suitable, Healthline will talk through other options with you.

If you prefer, you can contact the Disabled Persons Assembly NZ on 04 801 9100 or at
XXXX(@XXX.XXX.XX

Thanks
Stewart

Stewart Gibbon Environment Canterbury

Senior Manager Public Transport
Environment Canterbury
Christchurch Office
PO Box 345, Christchurch 8140
+64 27 548 4776 Customer Services: 0800 324 636

24 Hours: 0800 76 55 88

XXXXXXX.XXXXXX(@XXXX.XXXX.XX
ecan.govt.nz

covid19.govt.nz
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From: Michelle Clemence

To: Stewart Gibbon

Cc: Jeremy Dickson

Subject: RE: Mask Compliance

Date: Friday, 19 February 2021 3:40:35 pm
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Stewart, no it does not. | know of two drivers only who have exemptions. Both, to the best of
my knowledge tape their exemptions to the ticket machine for all to see. 6% is far more than 2
drivers. | am noticing everyone leaving here with masks so | can only surmise they are removing
them out on the road assuming they will not be caught. Is there any further information such as
dates / times and bus numbers as | am happy to follow up with the drivers concerned. Our
messaging here is very clear. Face coverings are compulsory and they are to be worn correctly
covering both nose and mouth

Kind regards

Michelle Clemence

Operations Manager Christchurch Urban
Ritchies Transport Holdings Ltd

Ph. 03 3794260

DDI. 03 3713117

Mob 027 4859679
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From: Stewart Gibbon <XXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>
Sent: Friday, 19 February 2021 3:34 pm
To: Michelle Clemence <xxXXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX.XX>
Cc: Jeremy Dickson <XXXXXX.XXXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX>
Subject: Mask Compliance
Hi Michelle
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
exemptions to wearing a mask.
It’s imperative that we set the right example in this situation. The situation is having a
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
Today we have noted 6% of Ritchies drivers through the interchange not wearing masks. It would
be useful to understand if this aligns with your expectations based on your exemption approvals.
Can you please:

¢ Maintain the promotion of this compliance requirement to drivers and the importance of

setting an example,
¢ Validate and advise your exemption numbers as a percentage of drivers
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Complete some sampling yourself to determine compliance rates
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

Subject: Updated posters - AL1 Masks

Date: Thursday, 18 February 2021 2:05:28 pm

Téna koutou

Here are the updated posters, they will be on the COVID 19 website shortly:
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1ryXCS9h5qdIFNg4K7RkpO2nhRhA75UgW ?usp=sharing
Please do not hesitate to let us know if there is anything further you need.

Noho ora mai

Rebekah

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
Date: Thursday, 18 February 2021 10:29:45 am
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

Here is also the final Order

https://www.legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0007/latest/I. MS453805.html

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

e Some of you have asked about what the MoH advice is for the serving of food and drink on
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
Jjourneys.

Noho ora mai

COVID Response Team
E 0xx / M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

'bWAKA KOTAHI / Unite

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



https://www.health.govt.nz/our-work/diseases-and-conditions/covid-19-novel-coronavirus/covid-19-information-specific-audiences/covid-19-general-cleaning-and-disinfection-advice
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

To: Richard O"Keefe; Jeremy Dickson; Stewart Gibbon
Subject: FW: Masks in level 1

Date: Thursday, 18 February 2021 9:18:58 am
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Hi Gents, this went on our screen this morning

Kind regards

Michelle Clemence

Operations Manager Christchurch Urban
Ritchies Transport Holdings Ltd
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From: Richard O'Keefe <xxXXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX.XX>

Sent: Thursday, 18 February 2021 8:53 am

To: Michelle Clemence <xxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxx.xx.xx>; Kelvyn Clark <kelvyn@ritchies.co.nz>; William
Goudie <XXXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX.XX>

Cc: Glenn Ritchie <xxxXX.XXXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX.XX>

Subject: Fwd: Masks in level 1

FYA

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Stewart Gibbon <XXXXXXX.XXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX >
Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2021 8:25:08 AM
To: Richard O'Keefe <xxxXXXX.XXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX.XX>; Ben Barlow <xxX.XXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX >

Cc: Jeremy Dickson <xxXXXX.XXXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX__>

Subject: Masks in level 1

Morning both

With the change in requirement to wear a face covering on PT in level 1 nationally now, it’s
important that we set the right example up front here. We have noted some feedback that some
drivers are not wearing their face coverings correctly — essentially wearing the mask below the

nose.

We appreciate that it is a challenge for a driver to wear a face covering through a shift, however
it is critical that, when wearing one it is done so correctly. There are legitimate reasons why a
driver may not be required to wear a mask and as the employer, we leave it to you to manage
this aspect. For those that are required to wear them, can you please ensure they understand
how to wear them correctly.

Thanks for your support on this

Regards

Stewart

Stewart Gibbon
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Face Masks



[bookmark: _GoBack]Please note that the government has made face coverings compulsory on public transport at Level 1.  All drivers are expected to wear a covering.  In addition, please ensure you are wearing this correctly and covering your nose and mouth.


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
XXXXXXXXXXXXX@XXXXXXXX XX
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From: Delaney Myers

To: Gareth Willis (AT)

Cc: Scott Gallacher; Stewart Gibbon

Subject: RE: Food and Beverage Services on Public Transport
Date: Wednesday, 17 February 2021 8:09:56 pm

Hi Gareth,

We were anticipating this query, and asked for guidance earlier today. | just received the below

from the Ministry of Transport:

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
| anticipate we will have some clearer advice tomorrow.

Regards

Delaney Myers / Manager Public Transport
Transport Services

DDI +64 4 831 8521/ M +64 27 705 0720

E.@.. / w nzta.govt.nz
Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency

Majestic Centre / Level 7, 100 Willis Street
PO Box 5084, Wellington 6140, New Zealand

From: Gareth Willis (AT) <XXXXXX.XXXXXX @ XX.XXXX.XX>

Sent: Wednesday, 17 February 2021 8:05 PM

To: Delaney Myers <xxXXXXX.XXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX>

Subject: RE: Food and Beverage Services on Public Transport

Importance: High

Hi Delaney

Good to meet you last week.

As Stacey would have advised, all Auckland ferry operators stood down the sale of food and
beverage during Alert Level 3.

As we move into Alert Level 2 tomorrow morning, and in advance of likely questions from
operators, can | check that the recommendation from the Director General of Health to cease
the sale of food and beverages on public transport will remain during Alert Level 2.

Thanks in advance

Gareth

Gareth Willis | Manager Ferry Services

Metro Services | Integrated Networks

20 Viaduct Harbour Avenue, Auckland 1010

M 021914 746 | P 09 355 3553

www.at.govt.nz

Auckland <7

Transport —

An Auckiand Couscd Organisaton

fIR CEinE >


mailto:xxxxxxx.xxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxx.xxxxxx@xx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxx.xxxxxxxxx@xx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxx.xxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxx.xxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.nzta.govt.nz%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956923183%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FCbpwr3hvcJe%2Bbeih9D1oB7mHyVmyzJOOyjPkwD65bY%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.at.govt.nz%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956933177%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=IOmC5G9ZJRy9Nmy2lkhqEKmM2OKWX%2BFxB887rsSzggs%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fat.govt.nz%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956943180%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=lRjp7bXCSo1jPVZRG3pAFNiGLrwUEa4Z4qLAPNE09Kw%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fakltransport&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956943180%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Rb9bEwcMLB%2FSKqU1V6xx29v4kOZUjBLa21bq9GIy%2BuY%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fakltransport&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956953167%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=P1yd0a8KLjLxWsGdTvLEQ%2B24sX0P9Zb57ZLACKHVq3o%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fakltransport%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956953167%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=pP3ZtB68OB1XjA%2BMuccu6aWnsVYZkZ5NPpNjJoBssrQ%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fauckland-transport&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956963162%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=unTuVjGP3jADGwcFbaa3gSbdbFfq13P6TT1zwiyVPO0%3D&reserved=0
https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fuser%2Faucklandtransport&data=04%7C01%7Cstewart.gibbon%40ecan.govt.nz%7C6625e1fac8434cfb6d7c08d8d313021b%7C984befeac12e454e91117b8d8da5e7e1%7C0%7C0%7C637491425956973154%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=pJyDbovumaJIzvAVkijeEYwX8RzvS5JazfVjrOe1i0w%3D&reserved=0

From: COVID-19 Response Team <xXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX. XX >

Sent: Tuesday, 16 February 2021 4:03 p.m.

To: Brenda O'Donoghue <xXXXXX.XXXXXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX___>; Brent Johnston (Ministry of
Transport) <X.XXXXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXX.XXXX.XX_>; COVID-19 Response Team
UXXXHXXXXXXKXXKXXX @ XXXXXXXX.XX__>; Danielle Bachler <xxxxXxxX.XXXXXXX @ XXXX. XXXX.XX >;
Deborah Hume <xxXXXXX.XXXX(@XXXX.XXXX.XX____>; Delaney Myers <xxXXXXX.XXXXX @ XXXX.XXXX.XX__>;
Emma Barraclough <x.XXXXXXXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXX.XXXX.XX_>; Freya Proctor
CHXHHKXXXXXKXX @D XXXXXXXX.XX_>; Helen Presland <x . xxXXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXX.XXXX.XX_>; Helen White
(Ministry of Transport) <X.XXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXX.XXXX.XX_>; [an Stuart <xxx.XXXXXX (@ XXXX. XXXX.XX >;
Jacob McElwee <X.XXXXXXX (@ XXXXXXXXX.XXXX.XX__>; Jacqui Sadler <xxXXXX.XXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX >
Lucy Nie <x.xxx @ xxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx_>; Michelle McCormick <xxxXXXXX.XXXXXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX___>;
National Emergency Response Team <xxxx(@xxxx.xxxx.xx__>; Nick Hunter
HXOXXXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX. XX >; Peter Cockrem <) XXXXXXX @ xxxX.Xxxx.xx__>; Rebekah Duffin
CHXXHXXXKXXXXXX @ XXXXXXXX. XX >; Sarah Taylor <xxXXX.XXXXXX (@ XXXX.XXXX.XX >

Subject: Food and Beverage Services on Public Transport

Hello all

Under Alert Levels 2, 3 and 4 face coverings are required on public transport. Eating and drinking
requires masks to be touched and removed, reducing their effectiveness. Eating and drinking
often means people have their masks down for a period of time, increasing the risk of
introducing/receiving virus particles.

The Director General of Health has recommended that the sale of food and beverages on public
transport cease while we are at heightened alert levels. Please consider this a request to cease
food and beverage services on your ferries. Separate requests are being made to the operators
of commercial passenger services. This is also in the interests of reducing contact between

people, ie, purchase transactions and people gathering at purchase points.

The Ministry of Health recognises that hydration is important, and that some people may need
to eat during their journey for health reasons and/or take medication. There is no request to
cease the practice of people consuming their own refreshments on board (in alignment with
your terms of carriage).

Would you kindly confirm your position regarding this request to XXXXXXX.XXXXX @ XXXX. XXXX.XX
to enable a report back to the Ministry of Health. If you have any queries or concerns, please
contact Delaney on 027 705 0720.

Noho ora mai

COVID Response Team
E XXOXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX @XXXX. XXXX.X¥ M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

"bWAKA KOTAHI / Unite

NZ TRANSPORT

N AGeNCY against
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

Important notice: The contents of this email and any attachments may be confidential and subject to legal privilege. If
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you have received this email message in error please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments; any use, disclosure or copying of this message or attachments is prohibited. Any views expressed in this
email may be those of the individual sender and may not necessarily reflect the views of Auckland Transport.

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
Date: Tuesday, 16 February 2021 4:03:01 pm
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
E XOXOOXXXXXXXXXXXXXX @XXXX.XXXX.X¥ M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

\\7NAKA KOTAHI / Unite

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
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From:
To:

Cc:
Subject:
Date:

COVID-19 Response Team

Alard Russell; Alister Newton; Andrew Carnell; Andrew Wilson (Waikato Regional Council); anke kole;
Barbara Tebbs; Braden Prideaux; Brenda O"Donoghue; Brent Johnston (Ministry of Transport); Bruce Chase
(Education); Chris Clarke; Chris Powell; Danielle Bachler; Darek Koper (Auckland Transport); Dean mitchell;
Debbie Hyland; Deborah Hume; delaney myers; Donald Riezebos; Donna McArthur (GDC; Duty Officer -
ECC Intelligence; Edward Wright; Falani liavaa; Gareth Willis (AT); garry maloney; gemma wilson; Hanoa
Morete; Helen Presland; Ian Stuart; Jacob McElwee; jen proctor; Jeremy Dickson; jessica easton; Jody
Jenkins; julian phillips; Kelly Curry; Lauriel Chase; Lisa Faulke; Luke Baron; Margaret Parfitt (Nelson City
Council); Mark Lambert (Auckland Transport); Mary-anne.baker; Matt Bruce (NCC); matthew lear; megan
Welsby; Michael Tannock; Michelle McCormick; Natalie Steegstra (AT); NEMA; NEMA; National Emergency
Response Team; Nick Hunter; Nicki Lucas; rachel smith; Rhona Hewitt; Richard Harrison (AT); Russell
Pearson; sally mcintosh; Sarah Hiestand; scott gallacher; Sharlene S; Stacey Van Der Putten (Auckland
Transport); stephen patience; Stewart Gibbon; Sue McAuley; Susi marinkovich

COVID-19 Response Team; Freya Proctor; Delaney Myers; Ramon Telfer; Matthew Floratos; Mark Wardle
AoG Transport Collateral

Monday, 15 February 2021 1:37:37 pm

Kia Ora,

The AoG comms team have updated the collateral to support transport. If there is anything you
need that is not in the file please let me know and | will pass on the request to the comms team.
The design team have created a google drive for access to the digital files:

https:

Becks

drive.google.com/drive/u/1/folders/15Jd6QdJBr4dTdGBpbGm?2GlaVziSkdailO
Noho ora mai

Rebekah Duffin / COVID Communications Manager
COVID Response Team
E YOO XXXXXX@XXXX . XXXX. XK M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand
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From: Chelsea Halliwell

To: Ben Barlow; Richard O"Keefe; Paul; Timaru Manager; Michelle Clemence
Cc: Stewart Gibbon; Jeremy Dickson; Sam Wilkes; Anne Doidge

Subject: FW: Public transport media query

Date: Monday, 15 February 2021 1:13:12 pm

Hi all,

FYI, here’s our response to this Stuff media enquiry about drivers wearing masks. Please let me
know if you have anything you’d like to add.

Regards
Chelsea

From: Environment Canterbury Media

Sent: Monday, 15 February 2021 1:10 PM

To: 'Steven Walton' <xXXxxx.XXXXXX@XXXxX.XX.xx>; Environment Canterbury Media
XXX @ XXXXXXXX XX>

Cc: Nadine Porter <xxxxxx.XXXXXX @ XXXXX.XX.XX>

Subject: RE: Public transport query

Kia ora Steven,

Thanks for sending through your questions. These quotes can be attributed to Stewart Gibbon,
senior manager public transport.

Naturally, it is difficult for anyone to know the reason someone is not wearing a mask, so we are
asking everyone to be both kind and respectful.

There are some drivers across the network who meet the requirements for exemption from
wearing a face covering. These exemptions are all outlined here. These drivers may have health
reasons or other circumstances for not wearing a mask — they don’t take this lightly and we
appreciate customers treating them with the respect we give to all our essential workers.

The government has been clear that enforcement of wearing masks is not the responsibility of
public transport operators, drivers or staff. We are following the guidance of the Ministry of
Transport, issued last year and again last night, that ‘Transport operators are not expected, or
required, to enforce passenger compliance with the Order or Ministry of Health guidelines; but
may provide advice to passengers for travelling safely for example by displaying public
information posters.’

We’re messaging the requirement for face coverings using information screens and posters
throughout the interchange and on all buses, through our email newsletter to our database,
social media, and through news media. This supports the government’s extensive efforts to do
the same.

We have plenty of masks for all drivers and staff. The bus operators distributed these last night
ready for this morning’s shifts.

We understand the concern and appreciate that members of the public are concerned when
they see people they believe are not doing the right thing. Our staff have observed that many
people are wearing masks today, however, they have also been fielding some feedback from
passengers about other people not wearing masks.

Aligned with Ministry of Health guidelines, we are advising customers that they can use any sort
of face covering - disposable masks, reusable ones, or even something made at home.

Thanks for running a story on this. Most people are doing the right thing, and by recognising
them, we can keep public transport accessible for everyone during this time.

Here’s the update we posted on our social channels this morning:

Face coverings are required on public transport
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A big thanks to everyone wearing a face covering on Metro’s services and scanning your NZ
Covid app while we are at Alert Level 2. Getting through this latest hurdle is going to come
down to each of us doing our little bit to help.

Some of you have asked why there are some people onboard without masks. The
government instruction is that drivers and staff can remind people that face coverings are to
be worn but not refuse boarding to those who do not have one.

We're reminding people of their responsibilities with advertising across our network.

Please remember that there are many individual circumstances that mean a mask isn't
suitable for someone. Some of our drivers are also exempt for these reasons.

So, let's keep up the kindness, so that those unable to wear a mask can also feel welcome
aboard public transport. Find out more about the various exemptions here.
And here’s the Ministry of Transport information about enforcement:

What about enforcement?

e The obligation to wear a face covering on public transport is the responsibility of the
individual.

e Operators, drivers and staff are not expected to assume the role of enforcement officer; but
they still have their usual customer relations role to remind people about face coverings. The
role is to educate and encourage passengers to do the right thing, but not be the enforcer.
e Staff are not expected to refuse boarding to people who do not have a face covering. This
kind of issue should be dealt with as you would normally manage a difficult passenger
situation.

e Passengers and staff should not be encouraged to call Police if someone is not wearing a
face covering.

Please let us know if you have any further questions,

Nga mihi,

Chelsea

From: Steven Walton <XXXXXX.XXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX_>

Sent: Monday, 15 February 2021 12:11 PM

To: Environment Canterbury Media <xXXXX(@ XXXX.XXXX.XX >

Cc: Nadine Porter <xxXxXX.XXXXXX (@ XXXXX.XX.XX >

Subject: Public transport query

Hi ECan media,

| hope you're doing well and had a good weekend. | was hoping you could help me a query
regarding public transport at alert level 2. | am aware you sent out a media release earlier today,
but | just have the following questions I'm hoping to clarify:

- We had a report this morning that a driver on the 28 line was not wearing a mask, why is this
given masks mandatory?

- What support is being offered to staff to ensure they have masks?

- What enforcement action are you undertaking to ensure everyone is wearing a mask?

- How many people have been wearing masks today?

- What support is being offered to passengers to ensure they have masks?

If you were able to get back to me before 4pm today that would be great. I've CC'd in my
colleague Nadine who will pick this up if | am out of the office, so please reply back to all.

All the best,

Steven Walton

Reporter

E xox0oaax xxxxxx@xxxxx.xx.xx M 027 355 3866

158 Gloucester St, Christchurch 8140, New Zealand
Private Bag 4722, Christchurch
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The information contained in this e-mail message and any accompanying files is or may be
confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, dissemination, reliance, forwarding,
printing or copying of this e-mail or any attached files is unauthorised. This e-mail is subject to
copyright. No part of it should be reproduced, adapted or communicated without the written consent
of the copyright owner. If you have received this e-mail in error please advise the sender immediately
by return e-mail or telephone and delete all copies. Stuff does not guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of any information contained in this e-mail or attached files. Internet communications
are not secure, therefore Stuff does not accept legal responsibility for the contents of this message or
attached files.



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
Date: Monday, 15 February 2021 8:37:24 am
Attachments: AL 2 and 3 Transport Operator Guidance 15 February 2021.pdf

Hi everyone,

Please find attached:

e the Order which has now been promulgated -
https://www.legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2021/0006/latest/[. MS451670.html.
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
E XXOOXXXXXXXXXXXX @XXXX . XXXX. XY M +64 21 716 892 / W nzta.govt.nz

Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
Chews Lane Office / 50 Victoria Street
Private Bag 6995, Wellington 6141, New Zealand

""?EIAKA KOTAHI /' Unite
7 RGN against
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

25







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

Subject: Draft Guidance - PT Operators 14 Feb 2021

Date: Sunday, 14 February 2021 10:52:09 pm

Attachments: Draft Guidance for Public Transport Operators - 14 Feb 2021.pdf
Hi Everyone,

Apologies for the lateness of the email. Please find attached the DRAFT Alert level 3
(Auckland)/Alert Level 2 (rest of New Zealand) operator guidance. We are only able to issue the
guidance as draft at this stage as the Public Health Order for the new settings has not yet been
finalised (and may not be until tomorrow morning). Please note the finalised version will be sent
tomorrow.

Please also refer to the key messages and information on the official government COVID
website: https://covid19.govt.nz/

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

Last updated: 2155hrs, 14 February 2021

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

Interregional travel between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand will be restricted. Travel within
the Auckland will also be restricted.

In Auckland, physical distancing needs to be observed on public transport services, and at terminals,
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

With respect to public transport services travelling between Auckland, and the rest of New Zealand,
physical distancing needs to be observed where practical.

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

o The Alert Level 3 area is defined by Schedule 4 and Schedule 5 of the Order.

e Interregional travel between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand will be restricted. Travel within the
Auckland will also be restricted.

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

o If you require further information or advice, please email the Ministry of Transport at:
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

= to provide an service or business listed in Schedule 3 of the COVID-19 Public Health
Response (Alert Levels 3 and 2) Order 2021; or

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

o collecting or accompanying a tlpapaku or deceased person, but only if the total number of
people collecting or accompanying the tlipapaku or deceased person (including the person
operating the vehicle) is no more than 10; or

o providing care, or enable care to be provided, for pets or other animals, but only if—

= abreach of the Animal Welfare Act 1999 could result if the care were not provided;
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
transiting by air) to undertake travel described in the list above.

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

e For aviation services travelling within, to, from or through Auckland, physical distancing is
required to the extent practicable- the Ministry of Health has agreed that for a 72 hour
order physical distancing on an aircraft is not likely to be reasonably practicable, given it
will disrupt services and require numbers of people to be disembarked from the air-craft
with little time to manage passengers.

e Small passenger vehicle services travelling within, to, from, or through Auckland, physical
distancing is generally required to the extent practicable: in accordance with previous
guidance the passenger(s) should be seated as far from the driver as practicable, and the
front passenger seat should be unoccupied; passengers can travel together in the back
seats if they are part of the same bubble.

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

e |n addition, transport operators should note that the use of face coverings is not required in the
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

o ifthereis a reasonable excuse not to wear a face covering.

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

e Itis important that everyone undertakes practicable actions to support a quick and robust contact
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

e A’‘casual contact’ is someone who may have been in contact with a confirmed or probable case of
COVID-19, but more than 2m apart or for less 15 minutes.

What should regional authorities and transport operators do to support contact tracing?

e Under Alert Levels 2 and 3, transport operators are required to support contact tracing.

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

e Cleaning regimes should include:

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

13
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

e a Business Travel Document (issued via the business travel register (administered by
MBIE)) — preferred; or

e aletter (issued by the persons employer) stating that:
o the person named in the letter providing an business or service (listed in
Schedule 3 of the Order), and
o the destination the person is travelling to.

A person driving a road vehicle must have Photo ID (Photo Driver’s Licence). Drivers/operators
(of other vehicles), and passengers (of any type of vehicle) should have a Photo ID, unless it is
not reasonably practicable (e.g. because they are a minor).

Travelling between home and work:

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

e a Business Travel Document (the business travel register will be updated with any class
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

e a Personal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by
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

Providing urgent care or support for a personin a
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

e a Personal Travel Document (issued via the personal travel register (administered by the
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

No documentary evidence required if up to 2 people are travelling with a tipapaku or deceased
person.

If there are more than 2 people travelling with a tipapaku or deceased person, a Personal Travel
Document (as proof of an exemption issued by the Director-General of Health) would be required.

22






If a Personal Travel Document is issued, it is preferable, but not required, for persons travelling to
have a Photo ID (NZ Driver’s Licence, Work ID, Student ID, Passport etc.).

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

e a Personal Travel Document (via the personal travel register (administered by the MoH),
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
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ECan Ritchies Monthly Partnership Meeting

Meeting minutes and Action Points from 26 Feb 2021
AP# Implement Notes and Actions Accountability & Deadline
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CovID-19

Jeremy to raise issues with
masks particularly heat related
to WK.

Drivers have had issues with wearing masks in the heat
Also hard when drivers are complying and passengers are not

Causes morale issues

10.
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Decision Applicable to









